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| am pleased to present to you the annual results for 2013.
RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2013 was
HK$703.5 million (2012: HK$704.7 million), representing a decrease
of 0.2% compared to the previous year. The profit attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$32.6 million (2012: HK$26.8 million),
representing an increase of 21.4% compared to 2012. The basic
earnings per share amounted to HK4.93 cents (2012: HK4.11 cents).

DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company has resolved not to recommend
any final dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2013 (2012: HK2
cents per share).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“2014 AGM”)
is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 22nd May, 2014. For determining
the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2014 AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed on Wednesday, 21st May,
2014 and Thursday, 22nd May, 2014, during which period no transfer
of shares of the Company will be registered. In order for a shareholder
of the Company (“Shareholders”) to be eligible to attend and vote at
the 2014 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar,
Tricor Secretaries Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 20th May, 2014.

OUTLOOK

2014 marks a starting year for the adherence to the spirit of the
Third Plenary Session of the Eighteenth Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China and the implementation of all-round and
in-depth reforms, as well as a crucial year for the realisation of the
goals under the “Twelfth Five-Year” plan. Looking forward for 2014,
advanced urbanisation, modernisation of agricultural industry and
construction of infrastructure is expected to create enormous demand
for the development of the cement industry. While the prices of coal
and electricity tariffs, which make up 70% of cement production costs,
are expected to remain stable in 2014, solutions to production capacity
surplus and environmental preservation will form a dual mechanism
which will phase out obsolescent small-scale production lines in a
progressive manner. This will assist quality supplies and ease the
oversupply situation, thus creating a favourable supply and demand
environment. As such, the prospect of the cement industry is expected
to maintain positive momentum in 2014.

4 Bt A AORIERAR AR ALLIED CEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OUTLOOK (coNTINUED)

In such an optimistic environment, the Group will maintain its previous
positioning as a clinker and cement company focusing on premium
quality and specialising in the production and sale of quality products.
Two specific measures have been proposed: Firstly, attention will be
directed to reinforcing internal cost control, with production efficiency
and product performance enhanced through technical reform and
innovative research and development. Focus will also be placed on
promoting energy effectiveness and reduction in emissions as well
as putting in place ecological green construction, thus realising clean
production. Secondly, effort will be placed on expanding markets
and customer value management and customer relationship will be
integrated, so as to put in place a more sophisticated marketing system
to support our production and sales volume.

The Bailonggang Project at Pudong, Shanghai in the People’s Republic
of China was granted approval by the Shanghai Municipal Development
and Reform Commission on 26th January, 2014. The intention is
to develop a top international enterprise producing modernised
and environmentally-friendly cement. The project will focus on the
treatment of sludge and domestic wastes in cities and industrial and
harmful wastes by transforming these solid wastes to substitute for
raw materials, fuels and additives used in cement production, in order
to achieve zero emission of waste in the industrial park along the
river in Bailonggang for the industrial chain of the recycling economy
through recycling of resources. Annual treatment capacity for various
kinds of waste is estimated to be 2,280,000 tons. The project is
proposed to be implemented upon the optimisation of network,
corporate reorganisation, compression of production capacity and
commencement of disposal agreements so as to enable the cement
industry in Shanghai to move forward with structural adjustment
and optimisation, the development of a recycling economy and
environmental improvement, as well as being a demonstration model
for the development of the cement industry in China.

APPRECIATION

| am grateful to our staff for their efforts in the past year and thank my
fellow Directors and our Shareholders for their support.

G,

Ng Qing Hai
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 14th March, 2014
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The board members at the 1st meeting of the 4th session of

the board of Shanghai Allied Cement Co., Ltd.
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The directors of the Company at the 20th anniversary celebration
of Shanghai Allied Cement Co., Ltd.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2013 was
HK$703.5 million (2012: HK$704.7 million), representing a decrease
of 0.2% compared to the previous year. The profit attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$32.6 million (2012: HK$26.8 million),
representing an increase of 21.4% compared to 2012. The basic
earnings per share amounted to HK4.93 cents (2012: HK4.11 cents).

The Group reported improved business results for 2013. On a macro
level, this was attributable to the recovery in the global economy and
the bottoming out of China’s economy in the second half of the year.
On a micro level, it was attributable to the continued improvement in the
production efficiency and the reinforcement of effective cost control by
Shandong Allied Wangchao Cement Limited (“Allied Wangchao”) as a
result of its unflinching efforts on technological innovation. This was also
attributable to the enhancement of the business quality of Shanghai
Allied Cement Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai SAC”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is engaged principally in the manufacture and sales of
cement, clinker and slag, trading of cement and provision of technical
services with operations in Shandong province and Shanghai in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

The Group’s cement and clinker sales amounted to 2,370,000 tons
(2012: 2,405,000 tons) for the year ended 31st December, 2013,
representing a decrease by 1.5% from last year. Cement sales retain
a top 78 ranking among key national associated cement enterprises
across the PRC'.

' PEESEMBERERTE OKRERBREXERI
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The top management of the Group with staff of Shanghai Allied
Cement Co., Ltd. awarded for 20-year service.

BUSINESS REVIEW (conTINUED)

China’s cement output in 2013 was 2,414.40 million tons, an increase
of 9.6%7 over the previous year, with a growth rate increased by 2.2%
when compared to 2012. This shows that the country remains more
focused on fuelling steady growth while adjusting the structure. With
economic fine-tuning policies in place in the second half of 2013, the
pace of new-type urbanisation will speed up, thus inducing a stronger
demand for cement.

Based on cement production in major areas of the PRC in 2013, cement
production in North China and Northeast China jumped by 1.95% and
2.98% respectively over the previous year; while the growth rates of cement
production in the Northwest China, Southwest China, South China and East
China were 17.31%, 12.78%, 10.41% and 10.75% respectively, all of which
exceed 10%".

According to an analysis of cement prices in China, the average selling price
of PO42.5 grade cement of key national associated cement enterprises
in 2013 was RMB337.83 per ton, climbing up by RMB3.21 per ton when
compared to that at the beginning of the year, representing an increase of
0.96%. As seen from the trend of PO42.5 grade cement prices, except
for cement prices in North China and Northeast regions, cement prices in
other regions started to go up since the fourth quarter. This shows that the
cement industry has gone through a stage of clearing the existing stocks in
the first three quarters, and cement prices gradually picked up in the fourth
quarter. In particular, cement prices in East China at the end of the year
grew by RMB21.28 per ton when compared to those at the beginning of the
year. Cement prices in Central and South China increased by RMB28.31
per ton, while cement prices in Southwest and Northwest regions rose by
RMB28.21 per ton and RMB4.52 per ton respectively’.

' PEEEMBEEREE OKRERBREEERS

2 National Bureau of Statistics of China e (20/1/2014) “Industrial Production

Operation in December 2013”, <http://www.stats.gov.cn/english/
PressRelease/201401/t20140120_502500.html> [14/3/2014]
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A snapshot after the 2013 working conference of the Group
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Waste heat recovery system of Shandong Allied Wangchao
Cement Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW (conTinUED)

In 2013, the consumer price index in China increased by 2.6%°, which
was lower than the previously set maximum indicator of 3.5%. China’s
manufacturing purchasing managers index dropped to 51%* in December
2018 for the first time since June 2013 though still exceeding 50%,
indicating that there will be a stable yet lower growth in the economy in
the future. The 2013 China national investment in fixed assets (excluding
rural households) amounted to RMB43,652.8 billion, representing a
nominal increase of 19.6%, but a decrease in growth rate by 1.1%° when
compared to that in 2012. China’s gross domestic product in 2013 reached
RMB56,884.5 billion, representing an increase of 7.7%° on the basis of
comparable prices.

As shown from the above macroeconomic data, China’s national
economic fundamentals are in line with expectations, reflecting that
efforts on economic fine-tuning policies are paying off. Benefiting from
the country’s economic fine-tuning policies, the cement industry should
enjoy higher prices and greater corporate economic benefits.

8 National Bureau of Statistics of China e (9/1/2014) “Consumer Prices for
December 2013”, <http://www.stats.gov.cn/english/PressRelease/201401/
t20140109_497457.html > [14/3/2014]

4 National Bureau of Statistics of China e (1/1/2014) “China’s PMI Was 51.0
Percent in December”, <http://www.stats.gov.cn/english/PressRelease/201401/
t20140102_493515.html > [14/3/2014]

5 National Bureau of Statistics of China e (20/1/2014) “Investment in Fixed
Assets for January to December 2013”, <http://www.stats.gov.cn/english/
PressRelease/201401/t20140120_502503.html> [14/3/2014]

6 National Bureau of Statistics of China e (20/1/2014) “China’s Economy Showed
Good Momentum of Steady Growth in the Year of 2013”, <http://www.stats.
gov.cn/english/PressRelease/201401/t20140120_502079.html> [14/3/2014]
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In 2013, cement distributed by Shanghai SAC amounted to
916,000 tons (2012: 1,001,000 tons), down 8.5% from the
previous year, generating a gross profit of HK$23.0 million (2012:
HK$27.2 million), a decrease of 15.4% from last year.

During the year, to standardise the management process as
well as to enable more advanced and reasonable business
processes, Shanghai SAC has rationalised, revised, compiled
and re-adopted all of its previous management systems. Given a
lesson from an operational loophole in 2012, Shanghai SAC has
further strengthened its operations monitoring system. To achieve
more steady and healthy business operations, reconciliation is
now conducted by both finance and operations departments
on a monthly basis and there is zero tolerance for untrustworthy
customers. In this regard, an appropriate decrease in sales volume
and an appropriate fall in gross profit were justified.

Shanghai SAC cautiously continued to invest part of its net
proceeds from the compensation of relocation into wealth
management products launched by banks in accordance with the
Group’s treasury policies and investment guidelines. Through such
treasury management, Shanghai SAC recorded fair value gains
and interest income on financial assets of HK$26.2 million (2012:
HK$28.7 million), representing a decrease of 8.7% from last year.
The lower return from treasury management was mainly due to the
fall in interest rates and the reduction in the total amount invested in
treasury management during the year.

In order to potentially enjoy the benefit from the country’s policy
where income from compensation of relocation can be deducted
before tax, Shanghai SAC also took the opportunity to implement
tax clearance in respect of funds generated from relocation
compensation with tax authorities in order to minimise its tax
burden. The previous overprovision for taxation on the relocation
compensation funds, after fulfilment of the recognition criteria, will
be reversed in due course. The relevant estimated effect on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company will be approximately
HK$43.9 million.

—=——44% ANNUAL REPORT 2013 9
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BUSINESS REVIEW (conTiINUED)

In 2013, Allied Wangchao achieved clinker production of 917,000
tons (2012: 891,000 tons), representing a 2.9% increase over last
year. Cement production reached 1,454,000 tons (2012: 1,291,000
tons), increasing by 12.6% over last year. Gross profit increased by
34.4% over last year to HK$44.9 million (2012: HK$33.4 million).

During the year, through technical innovation and reinforced
production management, Allied Wangchao achieved historical
records in 11 aspects, including hourly production of raw mill,
electricity consumption for raw mill, clinker production, integrated
electricity consumption for clinker production, 3-day resistance to
compression strengths of clinker, grade 42.5 cement production,
hourly production of cement mill, electricity consumption for cement
mill, integrated electricity consumption for cement production,
waste heat power generation capacity and incorporation rate
of clinker in grade 42.5 cement. Along with a decrease in
consumption as well as an increase in efficiency and quality, the
core competitive edge of Allied Wangchao has been strengthened
considerably. Despite the average selling price per ton for cement
is lower than the previous year, there is a significant increase in
profit margin. During the year, we actively made use of various
preferential policies and acquired several strategic tax reductions
and approvals for rebate, thereby relieving the burden on Allied
Wangchao and increasing its income.

Slag production of Shandong SAC during the year reached 88,000
tons (2012: 118,000 tons), representing a decrease of 25.4% from
last year. Gross profit for the year amounted to HK$2.7 million (2012:
gross loss of HK$1.8 million). As Shandong SAC turned around
to profit, all three major profit sources of the Group contributed
income to the Group.
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The Bailonggang Project, which was initiated in 2008 for the
Shanghai Expo, was reported to the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC (“NDRC”) by Shanghai Municipal
Development and Reform Commission (“Shanghai Municipal
Development and Reform Commission”) in February 2013. The
project was granted a preliminary approval by the NDRC in July.
In November, the project passed the energy-saving assessment
and investigation by the National Energy Conservation Center and
the preliminary approval on the use of land by Ministry of Land
and Resources of the PRC. In December, the NDRC delegated
the authority for project initiation to each province and direct-
controlled municipality. According to the response from the
NDRC, it was clearly stated that the implementation of the project
would be focused on the optimisation of planning, corporate
restructuring, the compression of production capacity and the
initiation of synergetic handling, which would be an integral boost
to the adjustment, enhancement and upgrade of the structure of
the cement industry in Shanghai, as well as the development of
the recycling economy and the improvement of the environment. In
addition, it would be a demonstrative project for the development
of cement industry across the country. On 26th January, 2014,
efforts over the six years were rewarded as the Shanghai Municipal
Development and Reform Commission issued the approval letter.
It is expected that the annual treatment capacity of various waste
would reach 2,280,000 tons upon the completion of the project.

On 13th February, 2012, Shanghai SAC entered into the (B %
(BEHFAEE) &%) (Balonggang Project Construction
Cooperation Agreement) (“Cooperation Agreement”) and the
(ERFZIZEERR (FRE) #ak) (Principle Agreement for the
Establishment of the Joint Venture Company) (“JV Principle
Agreement”) with /8284 (5 [®) 42 7] (Shanghai Building
Material (Group) General Company) (“Shanghai Building Material”)
for the purpose of setting up a joint venture company (“dV
Company”) to construct, operate and manage the Bailonggang
Project. Pursuant to the agreements, the JV Company is held as to
50% respectively by each of Shanghai SAC and Shanghai Building
Material. The former will nominate the general manager and the
latter will nominate the chairman of the board who will be appointed
by the board. The registered capital of the JV Company is RMB800
million, in which each of Shanghai SAC and Shanghai Building
Material will inject RMB400 million.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s capital expenditure, daily operations and investments
are mainly funded by cash generated from its operations and loans
from principal bankers and financial institutions. As at 31st December,
20183, the Group maintained bank balances and cash reserves of
approximately HK$52.0 million (2012: HK$171.3 million), including
pledged short-term bank deposits of approximately HK$12.4 million
(2012: HK$79.4 million) and time deposits of approximately HK$1.9
million (2012: HK$61.7 million). Total borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$94.5 million (2012: HK$102.0 million). At 31st
December, 2013, the equity attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to HK$780.1 million (2012: HK$741.6 million).

The gearing ratio (net borrowings over equity attributable to owners of
the Company) of the Group was 5% (2012: negative 9%).

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group’s outstanding borrowings
HK$28.7 million were repayable within one year and HK$65.8 million
were repayable after one year (2012: HK$59.9 million and HK$42.1
million respectively). Approximately 75.4% of the Group’s outstanding
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and the
remainders were in Renminbi (“RMB”). Around 12.1% of the Group’s
interest bearing borrowings bore interest at fixed rates while the
remainder was at floating rates.

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Mainland China and
its transactions, related working capital and borrowings are primarily
denominated in RMB and HK$. The Group closely monitors such
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
currency exposure should the need arise. However, since the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$ which is
different from its functional currency, being RMB, it is inevitable that the
Group would face foreign exchange exposure in this respect, whether
positive or negative, from translating the accounts to its presentation
currency.

Details regarding the pledge of assets are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (conTINUED)

As announced by the Company on 15th February, 2012, Shanghai
SAC entered into the Cooperation Agreement and the JV Principle
Agreement with Shanghai Building Material, a state-owned enterprise,
for the purpose of setting up a JV Company pursuant to the terms and
conditions therein on 13th February, 2012. Pursuant to the Cooperation
Agreement, Shanghai Building Material and Shanghai SAC agreed to
establish the JV Company to operate and manage the Bailonggang
Project under the terms of the JV Principle Agreement within three
months after the relevant government approvals for the Bailonggang
Project being obtained. Upon establishment, the JV Company will be
held as to 50% by Shanghai Building Material and 50% by Shanghai
SAC of the Group respectively. The 50% share of registered capital
of the JV Company amounting to RMB400 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$506.3 million (2012: HK$493.8 million)) will be
contributed and funded by internal resources of the Group. Details
of the transaction were set out in the announcement and circular
of the Company dated 15th February, 2012 and 16th March, 2012
respectively.

As announced by the Company on 3rd October, 2012, Shanghai SAC
entered into three purchase agreements on 28th September, 2012 for
the purchases of certain equipment and machineries at the aggregate
consideration of RMB380 million (equivalent to approximately HK$481.0
million (2012: HK$469.1 million)). The equipment and machineries
under the three purchase agreements were purchased for future use
in the Bailonggang Project and the Company does not intend to retain
such equipment and machineries for its own use. As at 31st December,
2013, Shanghai SAC has settled the respective first payments of the
total consideration in an aggregate amount of RMB68.3 million (2012:
RMB68.3 million) (equivalent to approximately HK$86.5 million (2012:
HK$84.3 million)) under the three purchase agreements. Details of
the transaction were set out in the announcement and circular of
the Company dated 3rd October, 2012 and 15th November, 2012
respectively.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group employed 344 (2012:
350) persons. The Group maintains a policy of paying competitive
remuneration packages and employees are also rewarded on
performance related basis including salary and bonus.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, the five highest paid
individuals and the senior management of the Group are set out in note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme, details of which are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER UPDATES

As stated in the prospectus of the Company dated 30th December,
2011, the Group operates a self-built dock on a piece of land next to its
production facilities in Taierzhuang District since December 2004. The
Group submitted the application for project establishment approval from
the PRC government for the dock construction in April 2011 and the
relevant approval was still being processed as at 31st December, 2013.
As to the waste heat recovery system installed in the Allied Wangchao
plant in Shandong, the final acceptance by the relevant government
authorities is still in progress.

UNCONDITIONAL MANDATORY CASH OFFER

The Company was informed by Autobest Holdings Limited (“Autobest”),
the then controlling shareholder of the Company, that on 7th December,
2013, Autobest and China Health Management Investment Limited
(“China Health”) had entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which China Health conditionally agreed to acquire and
Autobest conditionally agreed to sell 370,000,000 shares (“Sale Shares”)
of the Company. Following the completion of the sale and purchase of
the Sale Shares on 4th February, 2014, China Health has become the
controlling shareholder of the Company holding approximately 56.06%
of the entire issued share capital of the Company. In accordance with
the Code on Takeovers and Mergers issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“Takeovers Code”), China Health
has made a mandatory unconditional cash offer (“Offer”) for all the
issued shares of the Company (other than those shares already owned
or agreed to be acquired by China Health and its concert parties, and
those shares agreed not to be the subject of the Offer) (“Offer Shares”)
and there were valid acceptances in respect of a total of 80,012,436
Offer Shares under the Offer. Sun Hung Kai International Limited, the
exclusive placing agent and underwriter in respect of the Offer, has
agreed to take up all the Offer Shares validly tendered for acceptance
under the Offer, and place out all such Offer Shares to parties who are
not connected persons of the Company as soon as possible. As at the
date of this report, China Health is interested in 450,012,436 shares of
the Company, representing approximately 68.18% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Regarding corporate social responsibility, the Group remains
committed to actively supporting regional educational industries.
Allied Wangchao has offered a number of scholarships to reward
its employees’ children who have outstanding performance at
school and to support college students who are from poor families.
Allied Wangchao contributed cement as well as raised funds to
help construct a number of new teaching buildings and rebuild the
buildings of potential danger. Allied Wangchao has made donations
to the “ (D EBIFFE S ® " of Taierzhuang District and contributed
efforts to the smooth operations of the abovementioned foundation
with all endeavours. All these initiatives were highly appreciated by
teachers and staff as well as students of the local schools, receiving
praises from various sectors of the society.
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The Group remains focused on reinforcing green construction
within its factory zone, where there are clear water, weeping
willows, green grass as well as flowers. It has set up a garden-
like modernised production line. The “three-high” ingredient
solutions invented by a technical staff of Allied Wangchao were
reputed by Professor Lin Zongshou (a famous cement expert) as
“unique in China”. This formula has a positive contribution to the
resources conservation of limestone in Zaozhuang area, and also
a strong support to the steady production of the local cement
companies. Allied Wangchao has been actively searching for the
best alternate ingredient solution other than existing raw materials
that can produce high-quality cement and clinker. The cumulative
usage of fly ash, coal gangue, waste matter, slag, desulfurisation
gypsum, quartz mud and iron mud through the years reached
5.16 million tons. Allied Wangchao has been constantly upgrading
its production equipment. It has established steel structure for
raw materials and fuels that helped eliminate dust pollution and
optimise production environment. The kiln exhaust gas has gone
through denitration process and the electrostatic precipitator has
been modified to achieve the national emission standards. Allied
Wangchao has invested more than RMB40 million to establish
4. 5MW waste heat power generation units to make full use of kiln
waste heat, reducing CO, emissions by approximately 30,000
tons annually, and reducing dust and other harmful gas emissions
correspondingly.

Allied Wangchao plays an active role in donating to and financing
the reconstruction of flooded villages, the support of rural
communities, assistance in new establishments, as well as the
repair and construction of roads and biogas tanks. It paid water
bills and street light charges for some villagers. Funds in the
amount of over RMB3 million were provided by Allied Wangchao to
finance the construction of a temporary bridge facilitating villagers
and vehicles traveling to and from the villages near Caoloucun
and Yijia River, Zaozhuang. Allied Wangchao’s production line in
Zaozhuang, Shandong Province is equipped with its own limestone
mine, employing local villagers to be responsible for arranging for
the transportation of ores. Preference is given to purchase local
raw materials and fuels and to employ local vehicles and boats for
transportation. All these initiatives have offered job opportunities for
hundreds of people and raised the income level for local people,
thus relieving the social burden of the local government.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
(CONTINUED)

Each of Allied Wangchao and Shandong SAC successively offered
its core operation skill team with the “Outstanding Teamwork
Training Camp” activity in batches. Corporate management experts
were invited to offer employees with year-round training in phases.
The training has boosted employees’ enthusiasm in completing
their tasks. In 2013, by cooperation with the University of Jinan,
Allied Wangchao and Shandong SAC offered their employees with
training on “Cement Techniques”. More than RMB400,000 was
provided to prepare teaching materials according to the actual
situation of different job positions. Professors from the University
of Jinan offered 252-hour training on different fields including
cement grinding, central control, laboratory examination, machinery
and electronic apparatus. Upon passing the acceptance test,
employees’ skill level has been significantly enhanced.

Shanghai SAC offered a number of operation training sessions
annually. Training sessions offered in 2013 are detailed as follows: a
lecture on the optimisation of the auditing system by the company’s
management, a lecture on the nurturing of a comprehensive
quality of talents in the 21st century by the company’s general
manager, a training session for different departments and chief
officers of the company on the legal system by the Secretary
for duty crime prevention and the investigation division of the
People’s procuratorate in Huangpu District. These training sessions
increased the legal awareness of all employees, and helped to
prevent corporate crimes.

Finally, the managing director of the Group has given a
comprehensive speech for this new year. In his speech, he summed
up the Group’s development milestones over the two decades and
envisaged new horizons for us. Through a wide variety of training,
the comprehensive quality of the Group’s employees has been
bolstered, so that they can provide better services to the company
and the community and can influence each other in a positive way.
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A NEW PHASE OF CEMENT INDUSTRY
DEVELOPMENT IN CHINA

2014 marks a critical year for the transformation and upgrade of the
cement industry in the PRC. In the middle to late January 2014, the
market price of cement stood at stable levels throughout various
regions across the country, and maintained at levels higher than the
corresponding periods of the previous years. It is preliminarily expected
that profit from the cement industry is set to hit another new high in
2014. This optimistic anticipation is mainly based on the following four
factors:

(@)

Increasing urbanisation will fuel a stable market demand for
cement. In particular, with the country’s focus on investing in
project development in mid-west regions, the growth rate of
cement production in China is expected to maintain at around
7.5% in 2014.

Effective control over expanded capacity. In 2013, the
expanded cement and clinker production in China amounted to
approximately 92 million tons. According to the data analysis for
projects under construction across the country, the additional
cement and clinker production will drop to 65 million tons in
2014. Under the new regulatory environment, the phasing out of
outdated cement production facilities will be further accelerated.

Production costs of coal and electricity, which represent 70%
of cement production costs, are expected to remain steady in
2014. In particular, as long as there is no significant fluctuation
in coal prices, production costs of cement should also be
stabilised.

Since January 2014, cement prices have remained at relatively
high levels. Amid the steady investment phase in the PRC, when
the cement prices are positive at the beginning of the year, the
prices for cement are expected to be on an increasing trend
over the whole year.
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STRATEGIC BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

20183 is the twentieth anniversary of the Group. In a time of economic
ups and downs, as well as political and social progresses and changes,
the Group has managed to demonstrate its strengths so as to maintain
a prominent position amid fierce competition in the market.

Over the past two decades, the Group has established its own brand,
team, corporate culture and development strategy, which have all
become our intangible assets. With the investment and construction of
the Bailonggang Project, the Group will realise its vision and mission of
taking the initiative in the recycling economy and fulfilling its obligation
to make its contribution to the recycling and reuse of resources and the
sustainable development for major cities.

We would like to thank shareholders, clients and the society for

their support and are grateful to all management members for their
continuous efforts.

G,

Ng Qing Hai
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 14th March, 2014
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of transparency, accountability and independence. The board
of directors of the Company (“Board”) believes that good corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), the Board has reviewed the corporate
governance practices of the Company with the adoption of the various
enhanced procedures which are detailed in this report. The Company
has applied the principles of, and complied with, the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31st December,
2013, except for certain deviations as specified with considered
reasons for such deviations as explained below. The Board will review
the current practices at least annually, and make appropriate changes if
considered necessary.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises six directors (“Directors”) in total,
with three Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors (“INEDs”). The composition of the Board during the year and
up to the date of this report is set out as follows:

Ng Qing Hai (Managing Director)
Li Chi Kong
Yu Zhong

Chan Sze Chung
Cheng Kin Chung
Doris Yang Yan Tung

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” section in
the Directors’ Report on pages 38 to 41.
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THE BOARD (coNnTINUED)

During the year, the INEDs provided the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Group”) with a wide range of expertise and experience.
Their active participation in the Board and committee meetings brought
independent judgement on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the
interests of all shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the Company
had three INEDs representing not less than one-third of the Board. At
least one of the INEDs has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his/her independence and considers that all the INEDs
are independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review
and approve the Group’s annual and interim results and other ad
hoc matters which need to be dealt with. During the year, four Board
meetings were held and the individual attendance records of each
Director at the meetings of the Board, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee and the general meeting during the year ended 31st
December, 2013 are set out below:

HEBTEEZIRE
Number of meetings attended/held
yMEES EREEE BRERXE
BEEg Remuneration Audit General
B Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Meeting
HITES : Executive Directors:
&G (EHE4E)  Ng Qing Hai (Managing Director) 4/4 1/1
=il Li Chi Kong 4/4 1/1
Gidi Yu Zhong 4/4 0/1
BYFITES : INEDs:
PR DR Chan Sze Chung 4/4 1/1 3/3 1/1
g2 Cheng Kin Chung 4/4 1/1 3/3 1/1
I Doris Yang Yan Tung 4/4 1/1 3/3 1/1
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THE BOARD (coNnTINUED)

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual operating budget,
annual and interim results, approval of Directors’ appointment or re-
appointment (based on the recommendations made by the Nomination
Committee), material contracts and transactions, corporate governance
as well as other significant policy and financial matters. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the executive management
under the instruction/supervision of the Executive Committee which
has its specific written terms of reference. The respective functions of
the Board and management of the Company have been formalised and
set out in writing and will be reviewed by the Board from time to time to
ensure that they are consistent with the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14 days’ notice of a Board
meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given an opportunity
to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The company secretary
of the Company (“Company Secretary”) assists the Managing Director in
preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules
and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the accompanying
Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before
the intended date of a regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable
for such other Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting
are circulated to all Directors for their comment before being tabled at
the following Board meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director.

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial Shareholder
or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by
the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter
will be dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company (“Articles of Association”) also stipulate that save for the
exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall not vote (nor shall he/
she be counted in the quorum) on any resolution of the Board in respect
of any contract or arrangement or proposal in which such Director or
any of his/her associates has/have a material interest.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors
will be continuously updated on the major development of the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, a written procedure was established in December 2011 to
enable the Directors, in discharge of their duties, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a reasonable cost
to be borne by the Company.
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THE BOARD (coNnTINUED)

For continuous professional development, in addition to Directors’
attendance at meetings and review of papers and circulars sent by the
management of the Company, Directors participated in the activities
including the following:

SHEBESERRTE
Participation in Continuous
Professional Development Activities

HERESSM
BEZEN
®OEAEREEE

ERES  Attending trainings/
Reading  briefings/seminars/
Regulatory conference relevant
EEME Name of Directors Updates  to Directors’ duties
BITES: Executive Directors:
5 (FEFBIEHE) Ng Qing Hai (Managing Director) v v
Z= R Li Chi Kong v v
RAE Yu Zhong v v
BYFHTES INEDs:
PR B IR Chan Sze Chung v v
e Cheng Kin Chung v v
AN Doris Yang Yan Tung v/ v/

RERTUZTARIASBR T —=FN,
A—RBER  REREZES(HEEE)E
RIASREEERBEZTILZBER - YNEE
ERMEANREERRIBRBE -

MREEEHRE ZEE WM HEZBE
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FIRAGHERRERBAR  YEEARF 2%

BENERBZ RIS TR ESEE - BiF
BARRNER - Fi  XMEERBEES A
B HEER NG - RERTEMIZAZNER
BRI RESERENERME

Code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, which came into effect on 1st
September, 2013, stipulates that the nomination committee (or the
board) should have a policy concerning diversity of board members,
and should disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in the
corporate governance report.

The Company adopted the board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) in December, 2013 as the Board had taken more time to
discuss and formulate the same. The Board Diversity Policy sets out
the objectives and principles regarding board diversity for the purpose
of achieving the Company’s strategic objectives of balanced diversity at
the Board as far as practicable. Board appointments will be based on
merit and candidates will be considered against measurable objectives,
taking into account the Company’s business and needs.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, knowledge, professional experience and skills. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and the contribution that the
selected candidates may bring to the Board.
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Also, code provisions A.2.2 to A.2.9
of the CG Code stipulate the roles and responsibilities of the chairman.
Further, code provision E.1.2 of CG Code stipulates that, inter alia, the
chairman of the board should attend the annual general meeting and be
available to answer questions at the annual general meeting.

The Company does not at present have a Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Ng Qing Hai, being the Managing Director of the Company, is
responsible for the overall management of the Group as well as part of
the duties of Chairman of the Board which constitutes a deviation from
the code provisions A.2.1 to A.2.9 and E.1.2 of the CG Code.

Reference is made to the composite document dated 11th February,
2014 jointly issued by the Company and China Health Management
Investment Limited, pursuant to which it was stated that the board
composition of the Company will change with effect from the later of (i)
the earliest date permitted under the Code on Takeovers and Mergers
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong; and
(i) the date of publication of the financial results of the Company for
the year ended 31st December, 2013. The identification process of the
Chairman of the Board is pending upon the proposed changes in the
current Board.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee include the
nomination procedure specifying the process and criteria for the
selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the
Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package from
the Company Secretary on the first occasion of his/her appointment.
This induction package is a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on the responsibilities and on-going obligations to be
observed by a director pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, Listing
Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance. In addition, this induction
package includes materials briefly describing the operations and
business of the Company, the latest published financial reports of
the Company and the documentation for the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Board. Directors will be continuously updated
on any major developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices.

All INEDs were appointed for a specific term, but subject to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable
laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their office but
eligible for re-election. The term of appointment of the INEDs has been
renewed for further two years commencing from 18th January, 2014.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS (conTINUED)

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Further,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment whilst for those appointed as an addition to the Board
shall hold office until the next following AGM and in both cases, those
Directors shall then be eligible for re-election at the relevant meeting.
Every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties
and has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate
governance functions in April 2012.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
functions include:

(i)  developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iiy - reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In 2013 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.

—=——44% ANNUAL REPORT 2013 25



TEERBRRS

Corporate Governance Report

BEEZEE
i% B Z1E

ZE® &
FNEET  FERZESRATLZEE %
,\Ei’juiﬁiﬂa“ B E SR - TES 2
B SHLEMRBRRYBARWERT - I
REBIATE2EEETGREEH  MELEES
AREFEEREATELREZ(WER) - 2F
E.23%2&1*&11?‘3F(EA$$&¢F§$AJ—
Wﬁ )R A 1718 /RTﬁaﬁé%%WﬁAééﬁ\@@

u%“&:

REEBEEE_T——F+ Ak TH—
ZENIFRITESETTFE 0 BREMKE A
BYIEHTES - B RELEESHNUBK
BHK - BREBIUIFNITEREEF AR
HELEEEXR) RBBEEERGIRLZTR
WITEETHEELE - RELEQRREHTH
BIRUABITER - WAERA AR ZBERES
FERSRBUEEER c RREBEEZTE
ACkBRCEERNERESENRN - ZBESR
EERNBEBBERZMERRB (B &
KRR EE, -

RIFEBERE  REZBeRREFERA
RERMrERENX I REEHE - NZ
T—=F RXZBQVEAFRSH %m%%
BeiEaBRAXH I ARESE - K=
—=FEREBEARREAHL k%iﬁ%ﬂ@%
T2 TR T -

) wEhkERESSRERETEERREN
—E-CERRBFAGR-_FT-HFKR
RBFREZREER

(i) AmEr MEED %ATtt}’E%%AﬁR%;iﬁt
BREBERIZIREZ 8 RERE

(i) @EFTEFSRRE - ABSLMENK - ARET
’fi%ﬁi#%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ’]ﬁﬂ!{ &

v) i MEREEEREBUIIFNTES L
EHE T mF-A+/\BEBEMF -

26 BEa

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a Nomination
Committee, a Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and an
Executive Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of
reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the
committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated
to all Board members and the committees are required to report
back to the Board on their decision and recommendations where
appropriate. The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as
mentioned in the section headed “The Board” of this report, have been
adopted for the committee meetings so far as practicable.

The Nomination Committee has been established since December 2011
and is chaired by an INED and comprises a majority of INEDs. Currently,
the Nomination Committee consists of four members, including Mr.
Cheng Kin Chung (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Chan
Sze Chung and Ms. Doris Yang Yan Tung, all being the INEDs, and Mr.
Ng Qing Hali, being an Executive Director. The Nomination Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy if considered necessary. The major roles and functions of the
Nomination Committee are included in its terms of reference, which are
available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in
accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal with matters
by way of circulation. In 2013, no Nomination Committee meeting was
held while the Nomination Committee dealt with matters by way of
circulation. In 2013 and up to the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee performed the works as summarised below:

()  reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the proposed
resolutions for re-election of the Directors at 2013 AGM and 2014
AGM,;

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the
Board Diversity Policy and the revised terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee;

(i) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and
assessed the independence of each INED; and

(iv) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the renewal
of the term of appointment of the INEDs for two years commencing
from 18th January, 2014.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conTINUED)

The Remuneration Committee has been established since December
2011 and currently consists of three members, including Mr. Cheng
Kin Chung (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Chan
Sze Chung and Ms. Doris Yang Yan Tung, all being the INEDs. The
Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional advice
according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary. The major
roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are included in its
terms of reference, which are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in
compliance with the code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code, but with a
deviation from the code provision that the Remuneration Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors only and not senior management
(as opposed to executive directors and senior management under the
code provision). The reasons for the above derivation are summarised as
below:

() the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is not
properly in a position to evaluate the performance of senior
management and that this evaluation process is more effectively
carried out by the Executive Directors;

(i) the Executive Directors must be in a position to supervise and
control senior management and thus must be able to control their
compensation; and

(i) there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior
management more than industry standards and thus Shareholders
will benefit by reducing costs in the fixing of such compensation
packages.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year in
accordance with its terms of reference. One Remuneration Committee
meeting was held in 2013 and the attendance of each member is set
out in the section headed “The Board” of this report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conTINUED)

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the Remuneration
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2013.
In 20183 and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the existing
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors;

(i) reviewed the remuneration packages of all Directors for the year
ended 31st December, 2012;

(iiiy  reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the bonus
for the year ended 31st December, 2012, the increment in salary
for the year 2013 of the Executive Directors and the increment in
service fee of INEDs from 18th January, 2014 onwards; and

(iv) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the letter of
appointment of each INED.

Each Director will be entitled to a Director’s fee which is to be
proposed for the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM each year. Further
remuneration payable to Directors (including any service fees of the
INEDs) for their additional responsibilities and services will depend on
their respective contractual terms under their employment contracts or
service contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation
of the Remuneration Committee. Details of the Directors’ remuneration
are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements whereas
detailed changes in the emoluments of certain Directors during the
interim period and up to the date of the Interim Report were also
disclosed in the Interim Report of the Company dated 21st August,
2013. Details of the remuneration policy of the Group are also set out in
the “Employees” section contained in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on page 13.

28 Bt A AORIERAR AR ALLIED CEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED



TEERBRRS

Corporate Governance Report

BEEZES®)

ERZBEA T —Ft+ AN
BRI =R IFNTERMENX - BREIB
VHEREENE  BERZESH—RABAE
EXERA ST AMEBEM B EREEXRNHZ
BIYFRTERTREIFE -ERZESZ
RERBERBETRAE(BRZEGER)
REBRERGAWEL L - BEREZESRERH
FMERABITERTS - WAlRARE 2 BER

EARERSRBUEXRER - ERLREE L
TZAEMBREC RS NERESERN - &8

REHE D NPT R AR R AT -

BEZEZE G BRBETRIELER] - AEST
EREVATAZ STRIRC.3.3 - MR % T A
XEEZZEGZBA T EBREE

() FITZEEINEZEAM R E IR BURTS 2
%

(i) REEECETEBREZLBRZAE
ERER Rk

(ii)y FELR AR ERSNEE AZ BB 2 TAES 21038 -
HERAMESNEES THERE
tF XREEMABFEFEE 2L -

ERRARBERZBSRMTRINEZEENR
HIFZBRTS < BRI R (M IERTT) - 2
UM

) AEFERETREZZESHEHRREK
tEHE B2 ERNBIRE REHE

(i) ARTEENERBRITRZRELERTD
BIRERAEZHES - &

(i) WUIFMITERAY TEERITH R ZBR
NORAE TAF ©

o EZERRBEREZBESEABER(M
FRER)EEECEITEYARAMEZERR
BECREN BREAERESRAREELE
AEBcEXAR  ALERZE L EIRER
FREEFUARITZEES - ERZE S T
FELR - 1B A] HE B A BB A0S BB A2 BB 2 R O 163
o [ BERZEG TR - BARER
MEAVER D ETENEREE -

BOARD COMMITTEES (conTINUED)

The Audit Committee has been established since December 2011
and currently consists of three INEDs. To retain independence
and objectivity, the Audit Committee is chaired by an INED with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The current members of the Audit Committee
are Mr. Cheng Kin Chung (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Chan Sze Chung and Ms. Doris Yang Yan Tung. The Audit Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy if considered necessary. The major roles and functions of the
Audit Committee are included in its terms of reference, which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are revised from time
to time to comply with the code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code,
but with deviations from the code provision of the audit committee’s
responsibility to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external auditors to
supply non-audit services;

(i) ensure the management has performed its duty to have an effective
internal control system; and

(i ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors,
and ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the listed company.

The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall recommend (as
opposed to implement) the policy on the engagement of the external
auditors to supply non-audit services for the following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its committees to
develop policy and make appropriate recommendations;

(i the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation of such
policy and recommendations is through the Executive Director and
management; and

(i) INEDs are not in an effective position to implement policy and follow
up the same on a day-to-day basis.

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee only possesses
the effective ability to scrutinise (as opposed to ensure) whether
management has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system. The Audit Committee is not equipped to ensure that
the same is in place as this would involve day-to-day supervision and
the employment of permanent experts. The Audit Committee is not in a
position either to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors but it can promote the same. Similarly, the Audit Committee is
not in a position to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced but it can check whether it is adequately resourced.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conTINUED)

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance
with its terms of reference. Three Audit Committee meetings were held
in 2013 and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “The Board” of this report.

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also
dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2013. In 2013 and up
to the date of this report, the Audit Committee performed the works as
summarised below:

)

(i)

(i)

V)

(Vi)

(vii)

reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by the
external auditor in respect of the final audit for the year ended 31st
December, 2012 (“2012 Final Audit”), the interim results review for
the six months ended 30th June, 2013 (“2013 Interim Review”) and
the final audit for the year ended 31st December, 2013 (2013 Final
Audit”) of the Group;

reviewed the independent review report/audit completion report
from the external auditor and the management’s response in
relation to the 2012 Final Audit, 2013 Interim Review and 2013
Final Audit;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the financial
reports for the year ended 31st December, 2012, for the six months
ended 30th June, 2013 and for the year ended 31st December,
2013 together with the relevant management representation letters
and announcements;

reviewed the internal audit review reports/summaries (“IA Reports”)
prepared by the Internal Audit Department (“IAD”), and instructed
that the issues raised would be addressed and managed by the
management;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the updated
reports on substantiation of the resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s annual review the
Connected Transaction Policies, the Related Party Transaction
Policies and Procedures, the Whistle Blower Policy, the Policy on
the Disclosure of Inside Information and the Code of Conduct and
Compliance Manual; and

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval 2013 Internal
Audit Plan prepared by the IAD.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conTINUED)

The Executive Committee has been established since December 2011
and currently consists of three Executive Directors, being Mr. Ng Qing
Hai (Chairman of the Executive Committee), Mr. Li Chi Kong and Mr. Yu
Zhong. The Executive Committee is vested with all the general powers
of management and control of the activities of the Group as are vested
in the Board, save for those matters which are reserved for the Board’s
decision and approval pursuant to the written terms of reference of the
Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to discuss
the operating affairs of the Group and may also deal with matters by
way of circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly responsible
for undertaking and supervising the day-to-day management and is
empowered:

(i) to formulate and implement policies for the business activities,
internal control and administration of the Group; and

(i) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business
activities of the Group within the overall strategy of the Group as
determined by the Board.

CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following
a specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees to regulate dealings in
the securities of the Company by certain employees of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries who are considered to be likely in possession of
inside information in relation to the Company or its securities.

—==443% ANNUALREPORT2013 31



TEERBRRS

Corporate Governance Report

LEPSEA

RPBH BT  EFERREREANEE
RAEMBHRERCEE RREBE_T—=F
TZA=1TBLEFEZHEAEVBHRERE » &
NADHEMBBLRERA - WETEEE
SR AR 2 B EMEREER(EPITE
EEBEHERRRE) ZREUNREERT
RO BHBERE - EFRA/MEZ 2GR
BEEWREHER - mATEHER REFERS
B TMERRFELCEEERUEG MR
%o

ARBSNEZEENDE) « BFIER T EEHEITTZ
PE R EEHNB I BN R EF50H K F51
E o

EE2A R BFRANAREABEIERR U
BE - WHEIRA W2 BEEE 16 - #E AR
RERRBRENAGEZEE - R_F—=
£ EZECEEERZESNAMES I
ARAREGT MU BERBESTENER - 8
TERER&ES  ANBREE TR MEIIER
BEEERE RHAELRT -

AEBARNERE ARG ESEM(MIFBE )
REBBARERMFIER - RAEEE(EY
FETEEHR) RMARR AR - Wi AEH
EYRERERAR BHEREBRARER
EZVEARERBETEZAG B TREAE
BrEBEI  RBEETREEFLE 2T
SRERHER - BB TRREARLR -

EFLEBEREBRLENTE B2 HY
T EWBE_F-=F+_A=1—AILF
2 NORHHS 2 BB 2 PO BB R AR AP o

AEEHEERES L B 2ER - NEPFHB
BERAEESREEEEEFREERTZN
MERRARHTEETIEZAG - WIBEEER
EASEERCEE KT ETEEE LT
Az sPRNEX C.280 B DT &I »

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with
the support from the Finance Department, the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2013, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which
also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
were complied with. The Directors believe that they have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, and made
judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and ensure
the consolidated financial statements are prepared on the going
concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 50 and 51.

The Board has the responsibility to review annually the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system and ensure that the controls
are sound and effective to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments
and the Group’s assets at all times. In 2013, the Board, through the
Audit Committee and IAD, had reviewed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss;
to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of system failure;
and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s agreed objectives and
goals. It has a key role in the management of risks that are significant
to the fulfilment of business objectives. In addition to safeguarding the
Group’s assets, it should provide a basis for the maintenance of proper
accounting records and assist in the compliance with relevant laws and
regulations.

The Board, through the Audit Committee and with the assistance of
the IAD, conducted internal control reviews of the cement business
operations for the year ended 31st December, 2013.

The Internal Audit Manager reports to the Audit Committee. The IAD
plays an important role in providing assurance to the Board that a
sound internal control system is maintained and operated by the
management. This is part of the Board’s plan to enhance the standards
of the Group’s overall corporate governance and comply with the code
provision C.2 of the CG Code.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (conTINUED)

The Internal Audit Policy, the Internal Audit Plan and the IA Reports
were prepared by the IAD and issued to the Audit Committee and the
Board for review. A discussion of the policies and procedures on the
management of each of the major types of risk which the Group is
facing is included in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

The IAD performed internal control assessments of cement business
operations for the year ended 31st December, 2013. The IA Reports
were distributed to the Audit Committee and the Board for their review.
The IAD monitored that the issues raised in the IA Reports would be
addressed and managed promptly by the management.

The remuneration paid/payable to the Group’s external auditor in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31st
December, 2013 is set out as follows:

AREERMZ RS Services rendered for the Group FHEIT
HK$'000
ZERTS Audit services 800
RS (BIEERT A Non-audit services (including review of interim results
MSFEBRERS) and continuing connected transaction) 221
st Total 1,021
BERERZEBE COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
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The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
which include interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. Such published documents together with the latest corporate
information and news are also made available on the website of the
Company.

The Company’s general meetings are valuable forums for the Board to
communicate directly with the Shareholders. Code provision E.1.2 of
the CG Code stipulates that, inter alia, the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting and be available to answer questions
at the annual general meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(CONTINUED)

The 2013 AGM was held on 23rd May, 2013. As the Company does
not at present have a Chairman of the Board, Mr. Ng Qing Hai, the
Managing Director, took the chair of the meeting and another Executive
Director and all INEDs (including the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee) were present
thereat to answer any question to ensure effective communication with
the Shareholders. The attendance record of the Directors at the general
meeting is set out in the section headed “The Board” of this report.

The chairman of any independent board committee formed as
necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is
appointed, at least a member of the independent board committee)
should also be available to answer questions at any general meeting
of the Shareholders to approve a connected transaction or any other
transaction that is subject to independent Shareholders’ approval.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meeting for each
substantial issue, including the re-election of Directors.

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent in the case of AGM at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear
business days in case of all other general meetings. An explanation
of the detailed procedures of conducting a poll is provided to the
Shareholders at the commencement of the meeting. The Chairman
answers questions from Shareholders regarding voting by way of a
poll. The poll results are published in the manner prescribed under the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company can request the convening of an extraordinary general
meeting according to Article 64 of the Articles of Association by
written requisition, with stated business proposed to be transacted,
which must be validly served at the head office and principal place of
business of the Company registered in Hong Kong (“Head Office”) or at
Tricor Secretaries Limited, the branch share registrar of the Company
(“Registration Office”). Besides, Shareholders may make a proposal at
a Shareholders’ meeting by submitting it in written form to the Board at
the Head Office or at the Registration Office in the form of a proposed
resolution, which shall clearly and concisely set out the proposal for
discussion and be relevant to the Company’s business scope.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy. A
Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board at the Head Office for
the attention of the Board in written form, which shall state the nature
of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry. In addition,
Shareholders can contact the Registration Office for any questions
about their shareholdings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and
complying with the CG Code of the Stock Exchange but also about
promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture.
We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current
practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and
developments. Any views and suggestions from our Shareholders to
promote and improve our transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

A,

Ng Qing Hai
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 14th March, 2014
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The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended
31st December, 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2013 are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s revenue for the year was derived mainly from activities
carried out in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). An analysis of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31st December, 2013 is set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2013 are
set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 52 and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31st December, 2013 (2012: HK2 cents per share).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
totalling approximately HK$17,010,000.

Details of these and other movements in property, plant and equipment

of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the share option scheme are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the amended and
restated articles of association of the Company (“Articles of Association”)
or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Bank borrowings of the Group which are repayable within one year are
classified as current liabilities. Repayment analysis of bank borrowings
of the Group is set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group had not capitalised any interest during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Ng Qing Hai
Li Chi Kong
Yu Zhong

Chan Sze Chung
Cheng Kin Chung
Doris Yang Yan Tung

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Cheng

Kin Chung and Ms. Doris Yang Yan Tung shall retire from office by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ng Qing Hai, aged 57, was appointed a Director of the Company in
March 2011 and re-designated as an Executive Director of the Company
in December 2011. Mr. Ng is also the Managing Director of the Group.
He is a director of all subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ng completed
a three years’ course in Finance and Accounting in Building Materials
Industry in Faculty of Enterprises Management at Shanghai Institute
of Building Materials Industry in 1983 and also completed a course in
management consultancy at GROUPE ESSEC of France in 1988. He
has been a non-practising member of The Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants of the PRC since 1994. Mr. Ng is the 6th vice
chairman of Shanghai Cement Industrial Association of the PRC, and
was a fellow member of Asian Knowledge Management Association for
the period from November 2005 to November 2006. He has extensive
experience in managing enterprises and in the cement industry in the
PRC. He has been a member of 11th Shandong Provincial Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference since January
2018. Mr. Ng was previously the chief executive officer of ChinaVision
Media Group Limited (“ChinaVision Media”), whose shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).
He is currently the president and an executive director of ChinaVision
Media. Mr. Ng resigned as a non-executive director of Tian An China
Investments Company Limited (“TACI”), the then controlling shareholder
of the Company, in January 2013. He is a younger brother of Mr. Huang
Wu Hu (a senior management of the Group).

Li Chi Kong, aged 60, was appointed a Director of the Company
in March 2011 and re-designated as an Executive Director of the
Company in December 2011. Mr. Li is a director of all subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Li graduated from the University of Edinburgh in
Scotland, United Kingdom with a Bachelor’s Degree of Science and
obtained a Post-graduate Diploma in Accounting from Heriot-Watt
University in Edinburgh. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Mr. Li has extensive
experience in finance and accounting. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Li worked for two major audit firms and acted as the group financial
controller for several listed companies in Hong Kong. He is the financial
controller and an executive director of Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, as well as the group financial
controller of Allied Group Limited, also a substantial shareholder of the
Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTiNUED)

Yu Zhong, aged 51, was appointed a Director of the Company
in March 2011 and re-designated as an Executive Director of the
Company in December 2011. Mr. Yu is principally responsible for
the sales and marketing operations and the development of cement
business of the Group. He joined Shanghai Allied Cement Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai SAC”), a subsidiary of the Company, in December 1993 and
is currently a director and the vice general manager of Shanghai SAC,
and has been a director of Shandong Allied Wangchao Cement Limited
(“Allied Wangchao”), a subsidiary of the Company, since December
20083. He served as the deputy general manager of Shandong
Shanghai Allied Cement Co., Ltd. (“Shandong SAC”), also a subsidiary
of the Company, for the period from June 2001 to July 2004. Mr. Yu
completed a two and a half years’ course in cement craftsmanship
at Shanghai School of Building Materials in 1982 and in 1988, he
graduated from Shanghai Light Industry Authority Workers College in
Industrial Enterprise Management. In 1993, Shanghai Building Material
Authority certified that Mr. Yu was qualified as an economist. He has
extensive experience in cement industry and in operation management,
marketing and production management.

Chan Sze Chung, aged 44, was appointed an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in December 2011. He graduated
from the University of Wales with Bachelor of Arts in Accounting
and Finance in 1991 and obtained Master of Arts in Accounting and
Finance of the University of Lancaster in 1992. Mr. Chan is a Certified
Public Accountant of the HKICPA and a member of American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Besides, he was also recognised as
Chartered Financial Analyst by CFA Institute of the United States of
America. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in accounting and finance.
Prior to joining the Group, he acted as the chief financial officer of
Coolpoint Energy Limited (now known as Viva China Holdings Limited)
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and was acting the
chief financial officer of Nam Tai Electronic and Electrical Products
Limited whose shares were previously listed on the Stock Exchange,
and acted as vice chief financial officer of Nam Tai Electronics, Inc.
whose shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. During the
period from January 1993 to August 1997, Mr. Chan was employed by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and served as senior accountant at the time
of his resignation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Cheng Kin Chung, aged 52, was appointed an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in December 2011. Mr. Cheng was
admitted as an Associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales in 2005 and a member of American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in 1993. He obtained his Master
of Professional Accounting and Master of Arts in English for the
Professions in 2000 and in 2009 respectively, from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.

Mr. Cheng is experienced in auditing, accounting, and financial
management and consultation. Mr. Cheng had been a partner of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for the period from 2001 to 2004. Thereafter,
he joined Skyworth Digital Holdings Limited, shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange, and served as an executive director for the
period from September 2004 to December 2004 and as the chief
financial officer since July 2004 until he had been re-designated from
the chief financial officer to chief information and investment officer
in January 2007, responsible for the evaluation and management of
investments of the group. Mr. Cheng is currently the sole director of his
own consultancy firm, namely Poly Genius Consulting Limited, a private
company incorporated in Hong Kong, mainly engaged in providing
consultancy services and is also the sole director and chief executive
officer of another private company incorporated in Hong Kong, namely
QEE Technology (HK) Company Limited, which is engaged in Light-
Emitting Diode lighting business.

Doris Yang Yan Tung, aged 44, was appointed an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in December 2011. Ms. Yang
graduated from University of Leicester, England with a Bachelor of
Science (Economics) in 19983. She then obtained her Master of Science
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2003. Ms. Yang is a
fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
(“HKICS”) with practitioner’s endorsement and a fellow member of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (“ICSA”). Ms. Yang
also earned the Certificate in Risk Management Assurance (CRMA)
designation granted by The Institute of Internal Auditors in 2013.
She is currently a director of Bloomy Corporate Consultant Limited,
a company incorporated in Hong Kong mainly engaged in providing
company secretarial and management consultancy services. She is
also a director of Green Grin Club Limited (“Green Grin”), a company
principally engaged in provision of training services, and a director of
Grin Kitchen Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Green Grin and
is principally engaged in philanthropic and volunteer activities. She
is experienced in handling company secretarial and internal control
matters of listed companies in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Yang was the company secretary of ChinaVision for the period from
June 2001 to June 2002. Thereafter, she served as company secretary
of Greater China Holdings Limited, shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange, for the period from July 2002 to August 2005, and
served as company secretary of China Gas Holdings Limited, shares
of which are also listed on the Stock Exchange, for the period from
November 2002 to April 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Huang Wu Hu, aged 60, joined the Group in June 2001 and is
currently a director and the general manager of Shandong SAC and
Allied Wangchao. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang worked for
various Credit Unions in Nan’an City of Fujian province, currently known
as Fujian Nan’an Rural Cooperative Bank, for more than twenty years
during which he served as an accountant for four years, vice supervisor
for nine years and supervisor for eight years. He is a registered
planner in the PRC and is a qualified economist. He was awarded the
Certificate of Qualified Senior Manager. Mr. Huang was appointed as a
member from 7th to 9th sessions of each of the Municipal Committee
and Standing Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Zaozhuang, Shandong. He is an elder brother of Mr. Ng
Qing Hai (the Managing Director of the Company).

Li Chao, aged 51, joined the Group in February 2002. He is currently
the financial controller and a director of Shanghai SAC and also a
director of Shandong SAC. Mr. Li completed a three years’ course
in Financial Accounting in Construction Materials Industry in the
Department of Enterprises Management at Shanghai Institute of
Building Materials Industry in 1983 and in 2001, he completed a three
years’ part-time Post-graduate course in Economic Management at
Party School of Chinese Communist Party of Hubei province. Mr. Li was
approved as a senior accountant by Professional Title Reform Office of
Hubei province in 1996.

Zhang Shou Tian, aged 62, joined the Group in June 2005. He has
been the financial controller of Shandong SAC and Allied Wangchao
since December 2006. Mr. Zhang completed a two years’ course in
Finance and Accounting for Infrastructure jointly organised by National
Industrial Bureau of Construction Materials and Li Xin Accounting
Institute in 1989 and a two and a half years’ part time course in
Economic Management at Party School of Chinese Communist Party
of Shandong province in 1996. Prior to joining the Group, he served
as finance officer at Tengzhou Water Resources Bureau for more than
ten years, and was the deputy head of finance department and head
of audit division of China United Cement Lunan Co., Ltd. for about
five years respectively. Mr. Zhang was appointed a member of the 6th
council of Construction Materials Society, Accounting Society of China
in 2008.

Wong Ka Hang, aged 32, was appointed the Company Secretary
of the Company in November 2011. Ms. Wong is currently also the
company secretarial manager of TACI. She is an associate of both
HKICS and ICSA. Ms. Wong graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with Bachelor of Laws and holds a Master of Arts in Humanities
from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and
a Postgraduate Diploma in Finance and Law from HKU School of
Professional and Continuing Education. She has more than seven
years’ experience in performing company secretarial and general legal
functions in various Hong Kong listed companies.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (“AGM”) has an unexpired service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”) were appointed
for a specific term of two years which shall continue until 17th January,
2016 but subject to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association
or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire
from their office.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31st December, 2013, none of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”), as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the Directors
(not being the INEDs) are considered to have interests in the businesses
which compete or are likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate with the exception of granting of share
options to subscribe for shares under the share option scheme.

42 EANRIZEIREMR AR ALLIED CEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED



EEERE
Directors’ Report

FERRRHEMA LT 2R SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS
RZE—=F+_A=+—8 BEZEKLH As at 31st December, 2013, the following shareholders of the Company

EIEPEIRGIREEAFE 2 M - % (“Shareholders”) had interests in the shares (“Shares”) or underlying
BARRNBBMDEIER D ER 2 AQBFKRE shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept

(TR DA - under Section 336 of the SFO:
BEREZROREBERG ZHE
Number of Shares and underlying shares interested
AR EEEE
(L\ERHEFA (%% EBE
FHER) ZHER) ERITRAZ
Personal Corporate BAEAL
Interests Interests Approximate
(held as (interest of Hirgx Bmam % of the
EEE beneficial controlled Other Total  relevant issued
Name of Shareholders owner) corporation) Interests Interests share capital
AR EREERAA(X%]) - 495,000,000 - 495,000,000 75.00%
Tian An China Investments Company Limited (Hi21)
(“TACI") (Note 1)
FEREERRABRAR 370,000,000 - - 370,000,000 56.06%
([hEMRE]) 7
China Health Management Investment Limited (Note 2)
(“China Health”)
MM ERFEEERERAR - 370,000,000 - 370,000,000 56.06%
(TEERFRI) (#7it3) (Hiit4)
Shenzhen Waranty Assets Management Co., Ltd.* (Note 3) (Note 4)
(“Waranty Shenzhen”)
FEERARRR(EEER]) - 370,000,000 - 370,000,000 56.06%
Tsinghua Holdings Co., Ltd.* (‘Tsinghua Holdings”) (H1:25) (Hiz4)
(Note 5) (Note 4)
EEN - 370,000,000 - 370,000,000 56.06%
Tsinghua University (Hiiz6) (Hi24)
(Note 6) (Note 4)
A RREREERERAA - 370,000,000 - 370,000,000 56.06%
(DRYIRRE]) (Hiit7) (hiit4)
Shenzhen Aorongxin Investment Development (Note 7) (Note 4)
Co., Ltd.* (“Shenzhen Aorongxin”)
Ea - 370,000,000 - 370,000,000 56.06%
Huang Yu (Hiits) (hiit4)
(Note 8) (Note 4)
EER - 370,000,000 - 370,000,000 56.06%
Huang Xuezhong (Hit9) (Hiit4)
(Note 9) (Note 4)
FREBBRAR(FNEE]) - 165,000,000 - 165,000,000 25.00%
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK) (Bi210)
(Note 10)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS (conTINUED)

BEREZROREERD 2EE
Number of Shares and underlying shares interested
BARER EEER
(ABREEA (F12EE B
5H58) ZRH) BRITREAZ
Personal Corporate BRESTL
Interests Interests Approximate
(held as (interest of HiviER EREE % of the
EEA beneficial controlled Other Total  relevant issued
Name of Shareholders owner) corporation) Interests Interests share capital
EaE(RB)BRAR([HAME]) - 660,000,000 - 660,000,000 100.00%
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL") (Hz11) (W112)
(Note 11) (Note 12)
HeEBARNR((MEEE]) - 660,000,000 - 660,000,000 100.00%
Allied Group Limited (‘AGL”") (Bt:#13) (Bs#12)
(Note 13) (Note 12)
Lee and Lee Trust - 660,000,000 - 660,000,000 100.00%
(Hiit14) (Hist12)
(Note 14) (Note 12)
TSR - 57,198,000 - 57,198,000 8.66%
Gitigroup Inc.
ASM Co-Investment Opportunity Trust | LP 38,349,000 - - 38,349,000 5.81%
(“ASM Co-Investment”)
ASM General Partner | Limited - 38,349,000 - 38,349,000 5.81%
(*ASM General Partner”) (W515)
(Note 15)
Argyle Street Management Limited - - 64,998,000 64,998,000 9.84%
(Argye Street Menagement’ (teaEe) (it 16)
(held as (Note 16)
investment
manager)
Argyle Street Management Holdings Limited - 64,998,000 - 64,998,000 9.84%
(“Argyle Strest Management Holdings”) (heE17)
(Note 17)
Bl - 64,998,000 - 64,998,000 9.84%
Chan Kin (H:£18)
(Note 18)
FEERERER AR ([ FEE%]) - 33,468,752 - 33,468,752 5.07%
COL Capital Limited (“COL") (Hi219)
(Note 19)
Hm - 33,468,752 - 33,468,752 5.07%
Chong Sok Un (B#t20)
(Note 20)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS (conTINUED)

Notes:

1.

The interests was held by Autobest Holdings Limited (“Autobest”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of TACI. TACI was therefore deemed to have an interest
in the Shares in which Autobest was interested. Reference is made to the
joint announcement issued by the Company and China Health dated 16th
December, 2013 (“Joint Announcement”) in relation to, inter alia, a sale and
purchase agreement on 7th December, 2013 entered into between Autobest
and China Health (“Sale and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which Autobest
conditionally agreed to dispose of and China Health conditionally agreed to
purchase 370,000,000 Shares (“Sale Shares”), representing approximately
56.06% of the entire issued share capital of the Company. As at 31st December,
2013, the sale and purchase of the Sale Shares has not yet completed.

Following the entering into of the Sale and Purchase Agreement between
Autobest and China Health, China Health was deemed to be interested in the
Sale Shares from the date of the Sale and Purchase Agreement by virtue of the
SFO.

Waranty Shenzhen, through its subsidiary, namely Waranty Assets Management
(HK) Limited, owned 100% interests in the issued share capital of China Health
and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which China
Health was interested.

The figure refers to the same interests of China Health in the Sale Shares.

Tsinghua Holdings owned 40% interests in the registered capital of Waranty
Shenzhen and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which
Waranty Shenzhen was interested.

Tsinghua University owned 100% interests in the registered capital of Tsinghua
Holdings and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which
Tsinghua Holdings was interested.

Shenzhen Aorongxin owned 60% interests in the registered capital of Waranty
Shenzhen and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which
Waranty Shenzhen was interested.

Mr. Huang Yu owned 83.4% interests in the registered capital of Shenzhen
Aorongxin and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which
Shenzhen Aorongxin was interested.

Mr. Huang Xuezhong owned 16.6% interests in the registered capital of
Shenzhen Aorongxin. He was deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which
Shenzhen Aorongxin was interested.

Reference is made to the Joint Announcement in which it was disclosed that
Sun Hung Kai International Limited (“SHKI”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of SHK held through Sun Hung Kai Financial Limited (“SHKFL”) and Sun Hung
Kai Financial Group Limited (“SHKFGL”"), entered into a placing and underwriting
agreement with China Health, pursuant to which SHKI agreed to act as the
exclusive placing agent and underwriter of 165,000,000 Shares, representing
25% of the entire issued share capital of the Company, which are the subject of
the mandatory unconditional cash offer of the Company (“Offer Shares”). SHKI
offered Sun Hung Kai Investment Services Limited, another indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of SHK held through SHKFL and SHKFGL, a sub-underwriting
participation on the Offer Shares. By virtue of the SFO, SHK was deemed to be
interested in the Offer Shares.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS (conTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

11.

20.

21.

*

APL, (i) through its direct and indirect subsidiaries, namely Fine Class Holdings
Limited and China Elite Holdings Limited, owned approximately 48.66% of the
total number of issued shares of TACI; and (i) through its subsidiaries owned
approximately 56.14% of the total number of issued shares of SHK, and was
therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which TACI and SHK were
interested.

The figure refers to the aggregate interests of TACI in 495,000,000 Shares and
SHK in 165,000,000 Shares.

AGL owned approximately 74.99% of the total number of issued shares of APL
and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which APL was
interested.

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang are the trustees
of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. They together owned
approximately 68.43% of the total number of issued shares of AGL (inclusive of
Mr. Lee Seng Hui’s personal interests) and were therefore deemed to have an
interest in the Shares in which AGL was interested.

ASM General Partner was the general partner of ASM Co-Investment and was
therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which ASM Co-Investment
was interested.

Argyle Street Management was the investment manager of ASM Co-Investment
and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which ASM
Co-Investment was interested. Additionally, Argyle Street Management was
the investment manager of ASM Asia Recovery (Master) Fund and ASM Co-
Investment Term Trust | and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the
18,849,000 Shares and 7,800,000 Shares held by ASM Asia Recovery (Master)
Fund and ASM Co-Investment Term Trust | respectively.

Argyle Street Management Holdings owned 100% interests in the issued share
capital of Argyle Street Management and ASM General Partner and was therefore
deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which Argyle Street Management
and ASM General Partner were interested.

Mr. Chan Kin owned approximately 50.94% interests in the issued share capital
of Argyle Street Management Holdings and was therefore deemed to have
an interest in the Shares in which Argyle Street Management Holdings was
interested.

COL, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely Sparkling Summer Limited
(“Sparkling Summer”) and Focus Clear Limited (“Focus Clear”), held 8,469,752
Shares and 24,999,000 Shares respectively. COL was therefore deemed to
have an interest in the Shares in which Sparkling Summer and Focus Clear were
interested.

Ms. Chong Sok Un, through Vigor Online Offshore Limited and China Spirit
Limited, owned approximately 72.13% interests in the issued share capital of
COL and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which COL
was interested.

All interests stated above as at 31st December, 2013 represent long positions as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

for identification purpose only
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8th October,
2012, the Company entered into a sharing of administrative services
and management services agreement (“Services Agreement”) with
AGL on 8th October, 2012 with effect from 8th October, 2012 up to
31st December, 2013, pursuant to which AGL would provide to the
Group the administrative services which included the provision of office
space for record-keeping, utilities services including water, electricity,
telephone (including international telephone services) and internet
services, photocopying services postal, courier and delivery services
and other ancillary office services (“Administrative Services”) and the
senior management and the selected staff of AGL would provide to the
Group with the management services, which included the management,
consultancy, strategic and business advice services (“Management
Services”), and in return, the Group would reimburse the relevant costs
to AGL.

Since AGL was a substantial shareholder of the Company through its
interests in APL, a subsidiary of AGL, and TACI, AGL was a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the entering into of the Services
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.14
of the Listing Rules. The transaction regarding the sharing of the
Management Services contemplated under the Services Agreement
was subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but was exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules, while the transaction
regarding the sharing of the Administrative Services was exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Rules 14A.31(8) and
14A.33(2) of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs have reviewed
the transactions regarding the sharing of the Management Services and
have confirmed that the transactions were:

(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(i) conducted on normal commercial terms; and

(i) entered into in accordance with the terms of the Services
Agreement governing the transactions regarding the sharing of the
Management Services and on terms that were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
HKICPA. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings in respect of and confirmed the above continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in the Annual Report in accordance
with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
(CONTINUED)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, details of the Services
Agreement and the aggregate amount of the Management Services for
the year ended 31st December, 2013 of HK$1,465,000 are required
to be included in this report of the Company in accordance with Rule
14A.45 of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers were approximately 30.0% and 53.1% of
the Group’s sales and purchases respectively.

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier were approximately 7.5% and 15.0% of the Group’s
sales and purchases respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which to
the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five
largest suppliers and customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

As at the date of this report, neither Altus Capital Limited (“Altus”) nor
any of its directors, employees or associates had any interests in the
shares of the Company or any member of the Group, or any right to
subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe for the shares of the
Company or any member of the Group.

Pursuant to the compliance adviser agreement entered into between
the Company and Altus on 18th January, 2012, Altus received and will
receive fees for acting as the Company’s compliance adviser for the
period commencing on 18th January, 2012 (“Listing Date”), the date of
the listing of the Company, and ending on the date which the Company
complies with Rule 13.46 of the Listing Rules in respect of its financial
results for the first full financial year after the Listing Date.
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DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of HK$169,000 during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 20 to 35.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float during the year ended 31st December, 2013 as
required under the Listing Rules.

Upon the close of the mandatory unconditional cash offer (“Offer”) by
Yu Ming Investment Management Limited on behalf of China Health to
acquire all the issued Shares (other than those Shares already owned by
or agreed to be acquired by China Health and its concert parties, and
those Shares agreed not to be the subject of the offer) on 4th March,
2014, there were 84,987,564 Shares, representing approximately
12.88% of the total issued share capital of the Company, held by the
public as defined in the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Company could
not fulfill the minimum public float requirement as set out under Rule
8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules upon the close of the Offer. A waiver from
strict compliance with Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules for a period
of one month commencing from 4th March, 2014 has been granted by
the Stock Exchange.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

G,

Ng Qing Hai
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 14th March, 2014
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TO THE MEMBERS OF ALLIED CEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Allied Cement
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 127, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st December,
2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY conTiINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December, 2013,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Dessitle. Toweha, Tohmaton

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14th March, 2014
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Net foreign exchange gain

Fair value gains on financial assets
designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

Interest income on other principal
protected deposits

Reversal of overprovision on land
resumption exercise

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Reversal of (allowance for) bad and
doubtful debts

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income (expense):
[tem that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange difference arising on
translation to presentation currency

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic
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2013
BsE FHET
Notes HK$’000
7 703,468
(632,912)
70,556
9 14,743
1,849
25 14,049
26 13,060
(4,584)
(42,164)
23 227
10 (5,118)
62,618
12 (16,396)

13 46,222

51,706
23,815

75,521

AL
HK cents

14

2012
TAT
HK$’000

704,698
(645,867)

58,831

31,083
645

13,067
10,404

3,128
(3,856)
(38,561)

(23,964)
(4,261)

46,516
(9,384)

37,132

(845)

36,287

26,834
10,298

37,132

26,437
9,850

36,287

AL
HK cents
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Deposits for equipment and machineries
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights
Mining right

Loan receivable

Current assets

Properties held for sale

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Other principal protected deposits

Loan receivable

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights

Pledged short-term bank deposits

Time deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables

Other payables and deposits received
Amounts due to other related parties

Tax liabilities

Bank borrowings due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

B RE

Notes

16
17
18
19
20

21
22
23

24

25
26
20
18
39
27

28
29
40

30

2013
THET
HK$’000

414,669
86,418
7,477
7,694

516,258

2,448
51,506
339,271

51,983

252,838
325,326
34,208
198
12,446
1,899
37,615

1,109,738

138,719
43,403
8,967
99,502
28,741

319,332

790,406

1,306,664

2012
TAET
HK$’000

414,696
84,284
7,486
7,692
33,068

547,226

2,387
68,530
247,299

49,353

308,956
216,613

193
79,398
61,729
30,162

1,064,620

138,470
31,379
1,870
147,198
59,878

378,795
685,825

1,233,051
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(R=F—=F+=-A=+—H)
(at 31st December, 2013)

B #FE Capital and reserves

&N Share capital

&5 im (B & Share premium and reserves
AR (G Equity attributable to owners of the Company
IR Non-controlling interests

RSB Total equity

FREBEE Non-current liabilities
—FRIEZRITEE Bank borrowings due after one year
RIETIE Deferred taxation

F2EEFI2TENGEVHERERER

B RE

Notes

31
33

30
34

2013
THET
HK$’000

6,600
773,539

780,139
430,169

1,210,308

65,750
30,606

96,356

1,306,664

2012
TAET
HK$’000

6,600
735,033

741,633
419,431

1,161,064

42,118
29,869

71,987

1,233,051

= The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 127 were

—ME=A+NHE=SeE &%ﬁiéﬁjé’_ﬁé , approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14th

WHTIESRERES :

(&
Ng Qing Hai
=558
Director

EZE

54 A NORIERRAR AT ALLIED CEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

March, 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Li Chi Kong
Z=EM)
Director

EZE



mERERBE K
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(BE=2—=F1+-A=t+-ALFH)
(for the year ended 31st December, 2013)

ARTRRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
FERER
kx  RGEE EXRE RARE E4ARE  EMRE  REEN Non- &R
Share Share Translation ~ Special  Capital Other  Retained @%  controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves profits Total interests equity

T TA  TA  TA Tt Tt Tt Ta  Tan A
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKSO000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$O000  HKS000

RZE—Z5-F—-F AtlstJanuary, 2012 4950 575,063 28126 (392,739 824 15,125 339404 570,767 423262 994,019
TEE T Proft for the year - - : - - S B8 %684 1028 3713
HAREF| Exchange difference arising on

EHEEL translation to presentation

EXZE currency = = (397) = = - - (397) (448) (849)
TEERENG Total comprehensive income

k] for the year - - (397) - - - 26,834 26,437 9,850 36,287
BELAFEER lssue of shares pursuant to

RELTZRG public offering and placing 1650 163,350 = = = - - 165000 - 165000
AREERRE Expenses incurred in connection

Eiibunpa with issue of new shares pursuant

R to public offeing and placing - (1) - - - - - (1) - (1)
REAK Dividend recognised as distrioution = = = = - - (18200 (13200) - [13200)
ARTHER Dividend distribution to

Ba/BE non-controling inferests - - - - - - - - (18681)  (13681)
RZE--% At 31st December,

+-A=1+-H 2012 6,600 731,002 21,729 (392,739 824 15,125 363038 741633 419431 1,161,064
AEERA Proft for the year 13658 46222
HAREF| Exchange difference arising on

EELY translation to presentation

32 urtency 10157 29209

AEERENE Total comprehensive income

o] for the year 32,564 23,815 75,521
REAE Dividend recognised as distribution (13,200) (13,200)
AT HER Dividends distribution to

BERE non-controling interests (18,077)  (18,077)
k3 At 31st December,

tZB=t-H 2013 731,052 46871 (392,735) 780,139 430,169 1,210,308

—T—=49% ANNUAL REPORT 2013 bb



GEBRERB R

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(BE=T-=F+=A=t—ALFE)
(for the year ended 31st December, 2013)

BEER OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FR A5 A& A Profit before taxation
PR Adjustments for:
BRI E Amortisation and depreciation
T R 2 TEAS Release of prepaid lease payments
MEFIEREL on land use rights
RERER () (Reversal of) allowance for bad and
B doubtful debts
RbE R AN Finance costs
FEUE ZF B U Interest income from loan receivable
HARAEIFFR Interest income on other principal
FEWA protected deposits
REBRITZFEWA Interest income from banks
HENMBEME - BEK& Net (gain) loss on disposal and write-off of
Bl PAC E I St bt property, plant and equipment
7 1t B 2R Reversal of overprovision on
B land resumption exercise
e S BERR Fair value gains on financial assets
BEAHEEREZ designated as at fair value through

EREEZ A FEERSE

LEE BRI
LERSMA
FERD ()
FEWCE 5 508 M W S R A 0
HAEWFIE - BE M
FEA IR N
FE 8 5 508 MBS RIBIE BN
HAb BN FIARE W

profit or loss

Operating cash inflow before movements in
working capital

Decrease (increase) in inventories

Increase in trade and bills receivables

Increase in other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Increase in trade and bills payables

Increase (decrease) in other payables and

HEEMORD) deposits received
EEEL S Cash generated from operations
BRETSH Income tax paid
EEXK(FR) B NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
REFH OPERATING ACTIVITIES

56 A NORIERRAR AT ALLIED CEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

2013
FET
HK$’000
62,618
21,932
198
(227)
5,118
(3,532)

(13,060)
(2,495)

(43)

(14,049)

56,460
18,759
(85,484)

(11,910)
5,818

19,710

3,353
(67,815)

(64,462)

2012
FBT
HK$'000
46,516
20,605
193
23,964
4,261
(8,317)

(10,404)
(6,627)

28

(3,128)

(13,067)

54,024
(13,213)
(11,162)

(11,008)
59,195

(14,461)

63,375
(18,064)

45,311



GEBRERB R

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(BE=Z—=F+-A=t+—HILFE)
(for the year ended 31st December, 2013)

REXH
HEWE - BEREEZ
PS5RIR

R M2 mE
BEME - BEMRE
FEWE TR 2 2R
BEETEBBRK

RAFEBERE CREE

M EL b (RAS LT 3R
BERWERZ TSR
BRETEEBRR
BATVEEREZ
TREEZPTS5IR
REAE AR AT
B R HIRITFR

PR ARG SR T 17 K
i B

TREUE ATk

R E TR 2 B YA B
HARABIF R Z
REGIEE

HibE WA E

REXBHE(FA)
REFH

BMERK

BT Z PSR
ST THRIA
FEEXZER
EfNFE

s &

BEER
EBERRE
[EAREEEILE Ty ¥=)

KB FFER R X

EE R A BRER

188 — R R B R RIME K

EIE — R T BERBIRER
BRI AR R K

BEXB AR S FHE

RERBESEEYEM
(RD) F8
FORER

B ZEY
EREH 8

FEREER
REEEY - B
IRITHEBREIRSE

2013
FTHET
HK$’000

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment 202
Deposits for equipment and machineries -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (28,813)
Advance of loans receivable =
Purchase of financial assets designated as at

fair value through profit or loss (622,785)
Placement of other principal protected deposits (439,241)

Proceeds from redemption of loans receivable -
Proceeds from redemption of financial assets
designated as at fair value through

profit or loss 700,774
Withdrawal of other principal protected deposits 337,975
Placement of pledged short-term bank deposits (6,766)
Withdrawal of pledged short-term bank deposits 75,581
Placement of time deposits (236,076)
Withdrawal of time deposits 297,468
Interest received from loan receivable 3,229
Interest received from other principal

protected deposits 11,097
Other interest received 13,019

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 105,664

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds of issue of shares

Payment of expenses attributable to
issue of new shares

(5,1 1;)

Interest paid

New loans raised 22,499
Repayments of loans (30,728)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders (13,200)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (5,350)
Advance from non-controlling interests 90
Repayment to ultimate holding company -
Repayment to a fellow subsidiary -
Repayment to a substantial shareholder -
(720)

Repayment to non-controlling interests
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (32,527)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 8,675
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 30,162
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (1,222)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR, represented by
bank balances and cash

2012
TAT
HK$'000

26
(84,284)
(69,099)

(216,049)

(330,864)
(209,877)
185,185

386,142
185,185
(116,808)
80,620
(224,692)
305,216
6,113

7,708
8,691

(86,787)

165,000

(7,361)
(4,261)
46,490
(57,575)
(13,200)
(21,976)
55
(1,807)
(134,322)
(1)

(28,958)

(70,434)

100,596

30,162
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BE=T-=F+=A=t—ALFE)
(for the year ended 31st December, 2013)

58

—REE

AAAIBERERE AR EE2E
(—NAR—FEBEIG - K456 RIEFT)
RZZE——F=A-+—HRHASHEST
Ma sz A—RERRERAT c XAAZ
RhB—ZE——F—HA+/\BRNEEE
ERGABMR AR (B £ o R
T—=F+ZA=+—H0"  EBQAAAR
Autobest Holdings Limited ([ Autobest |)
—HRNEBEXES MK 2ABR
NElREGERIERARABRELTBEIEES
RAFI([R%]) - —HIREBEMKLZ
NBRBMRATF - WHRERFT ET o XAA]
2 =A% 35 BE #h ik A Clifton House, 75 Fort
Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands & A8 2 7] Z 42
MEERFEEL MM AR B E TS
TITE1385RE S R B REIE o

FAutobesttE B E H A EEFEELRE
BRAR(HREZEDEEIN =T —=
F+-A+tHIIVNZ2EEH#ETKE
HEEDN_Z—WNFE = A B RK AR
NEERRER - BEARTEHEEHITHR
K2 56.06% ° #IFHPNAA 7 L EHi#
FEREAE—_ZT—=F+_A+BR=_F
—POEF = AP0 A ER TR 2 BA QMR °

RRFRB—HREZERAF - EMNELQR
ZEBREBHNMEA2 -

e gmRABIT(EIT]) 25 - Ik
ARANEEBEARE(TARE ] @ it
TTHRARRER(TEZ)RA/RAMN L
MHAEL WETAERBZE25E -

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 21st March, 2011 under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company have
been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) since 18th January, 2012. As at 31st December, 2013,
its parent was Autobest Holdings Limited (“Autobest”), a private
limited company which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and its ultimate holding company was Tian An China Investments
Company Limited (“TACI”), a public limited company which is
incorporated in Hong Kong and listed on the Stock Exchange. The
address of the registered office of the Company is Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands and the head office and principal place of business of the
Company is 9th Floor, Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Following the completion of the sale and purchase agreement
entered into between Autobest as vendor and China Health
Management Investment Limited (“China Health”) as purchaser on
7th December, 2013, China Health has become the controlling
shareholder of the Company, holding 56.06% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company, since 4th February, 2014. Details
of which were set out in the joint announcements dated 16th
December, 2013 and 4th February, 2014 issued jointly by the
Company and China Health.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 42.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”) which is different from the functional currency of
the Company, Renminbi (“‘RMB”) as the directors of the Company
(“Directors”) consider that HK$ is the most appropriate presentation
currency in view of its place of listing is in Hong Kong.

Bt AR AR AR ALLIED CEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BE-Z—=F+"A=+—HILFE)
(for the year ended 31st December, 2013)

2. BRG] REBTHNERIME
HER(HBMHHRELER D)

RAEE  AEBEEHXRER T HREE
SRS ([BAEEAE ) MEMZ
] RIRERT BB M IRELER -

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

FEMBRE BN

BRUBREENETR
EIES

FBHIRE R 108 -
FRMBRLLARRR REMERER L
BEMBREEAF 125

{BEIA
BBE R ERIZ 105
BEURREENE 1R
BBBI R ERE 128
BBBISREERE 105
BB FIERE10%
(ZB——EEET)
BB HERE75
(ZE——EEE)
BB HERE8%
(ZB——F&E)
BB IENE1RBIA

EE(ERpBRLRE
Z82)-RBE0R

“ERNEET——F
BH RRYNHRE
TR

KE-AHEREER
ERAR

RAMBHR  AELHR

BE:
BRI

FRMTER

AELH

REMBERES BB

NVEEE

L

BUMHHR

RYEARRABERARZRE

Rt 2ENEEE 2 25

BARRALERRZ
SRR

(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (Revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (Revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (Revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1

HK(FRIC) - Int 20

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 —
2011 Cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine

BT XA &SN - MAFEE ARG MK
ERTERAMBRELER BT EHAEH
RAFERBEFEZHMBHRE LM
R/ RAEGEMERRAE 2 REEXE

S/ 480
A& o

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

—==4#4% ANNUALREPORT2013 59



RE W RRKE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BE=F—=F+=A=+—HLFE)
(for the year ended 31st December, 2013)

2.

60

FERFTR] RAAEFT VBB I 35
HER(HBMHHRELER D)

(#&)

EBUGHE LB F10FRBRE LG T L
BIE275 [ R A B M BEHKR | RIBLR
BB HRENDH REB(FEREELZE
g)-REBF12W[4LEKRE —BHRENE
B | - BB BREERFE 105 E IE
BZEE  BFEREERTIBRTHS
HFIRE D RMESIE « @EHIRERT
BWERES + O)RRELREWRERRIHA]
O AT ERSBEEERN  ROBEAR
THEEENUFEERRNGEN - 25 =
EIZEER R E  REEHEAHWIRE
NAEIRIEGIRE - RGBT R BEE
NEEBERZMGEREERR A E
ETGESHZ - BEPBHMEERE 1058
EINAZEINED| » LARRIEIZE & (o] B 4 1
WENREEZSIE - RERMNE BT
HwEERFE105 - AEEEETBHEET
ROAEEFIWIEE AT 25T HEE - K
MERT S ERAEBR T —=F—
A—BH2EEMEEMERNTMER
IHE AR BEERE BB BYH
MEAERIZE105E - BB SRS 2RSS
R BV BIREERE125% - BAEGS
EAFE27THR( ZE——FL B KBS
HER|FE285 ( — T —— F LB b EY
RAMERERANMRENSEEEEAY
2 BeENRAVEIRRIEEE A -

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (conTINUED)

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” that deal with consolidated financial
statements and HK(SIC) — Int 12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities”. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of control such that an
investor has control over an investee when (a) it has power over
the investee, (b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and (c) has the ability to use its
power to affect its returns. All three of these criteria must be met for
an investor to have control over an investee. Previously, control was
defined as the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional
guidance has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an
investor has control over an investee. As a result of the adoption
of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed its accounting policy with
respect to determining whether it has control over an investee. The
adoption does not change any of the control conclusions reached
by the Group in respect of its involvement with other entities as at
1st January, 2013. The Directors concluded that the application
of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (Revised in 2011)
and HKAS 28 (Revised in 2011) do not have material impact on
the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements but
result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

A ARIEIREMR AR ALLIED CEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BE=F—=F+=A=+—HLFE)
(for the year ended 31st December, 2013)

2. ERAMNTT REEITNEBYE 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

HER(HBMHHRELER D)
(#&)

AEBRAFEREERERT LM GRS E
AIE135% - BB BHELNF1HK AR
FEEFEMANATFEEHEREL
ME—1E5| - HEM RS ERNE13RS
EHEBEREZ : BRXRRDEBISN - BB
MIEREERFIZHRAN R FEEAER
EREERANEMEBH B REEARE
SAFAFEEFEMERAFEETE
RENEHMTAER MFERITAIER -

BRMBREERNE1BRG —HEEN
NFHEEERESETEARBRE RSN
Ao REB(REAMN)TENEFR ST
HEBE/KE 2 B (HBEEE—HA
BERAFEE  AEEEEER N2 (E
%) REBEBWHREEAF35 - 2
FEES—EARGER ERSEBRE
BHERABEN(EBEMEETTARET © Ut
S - BEM B MEEREISRIANBIEERZ
MR ER o

BB HREERNF135 BRI TR E
A o BRERIMEERIN B2 BN Eo < R
RNE B IS ERE 1R B AR A R
BRAER BELEIAEATE -

AEEDRMEBSHEREIREF A
[Hi2EWEER 225 - HRAEBE
B EAFIRETAR  NEEN[ 2
mREE | Bl B kR MEE RS
=] BE BAEGHEMEIRETAE
KEEMEE W EHBEIMNEE - X
HEMEEBENIAR D AWM : (QBER
TEEMOREBAKRZER » ROR
ERCRE RITE - BERATEFR D RERS
fR<2IER - Btz mUWsRIAR ZFASHA
ZHRREETADE  EERENLAN
5 2 5| K A 2 s TE B B AT HRER T AT 3k
BRIR K25 2B E - ZFEFICEBPE
AR EtrzEikasRE 225055
EfEHEN - WARRERES - R LA
BRI AMEEIN - BAEE SR
FVRET AL AL B - Hh2EEaEk
PEWNSEEENTE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (conTINUED)

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for,
and disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair value measurement requirements
of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, subject to a few exceptions.

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would
be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case
of determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is
an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13
includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. Other than the
additional disclosures (please see note 6 for the disclosures), the
application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive Income”. Upon the adoption
of the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group’s ‘statement of
comprehensive income’ is renamed as the ‘statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income’. Furthermore, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made
in the other comprehensive income section such that items of
other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present items
of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax. The
amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence the
presentation of items of other comprehensive income has been
modified to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments to
HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BE=T-=F+=A=t—ALFE)
(for the year ended 31st December, 2013)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (conTINUED)

2. BRG] REBTHNERIME
HER(HBMHHRELER D)

(#&)

ANER B3 e PR A T 51 2 AR R IR R AR
MEFNR] RAERTERI ~ BRI AR -

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretation that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

BEMBREERETA —EI-EFE-F-_4RY Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
LERRBRELAFE -2012 Cycle*
i
ERNBREENEIR E—FR2T-=FRH Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011
LERRBRERAFE - 2013 Cycle?
i
BEMBREEAZERE  FAMBREENEN 2 Amendments to HKFRS 9 and  Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and
EAMBRECAETE  BHEMABRBERE’ HKFRS 7 Transition Disclosures®
EHES
EENBREEREI0R . REEE Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities'

BBUREENE 2% R HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
BEGERETRIEA

ERGEAFIOREATR HERMTE  BEAR Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee

Contributions?

62

ERGHERERREITE BHECHIERSHAR Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'
EHOHEAEREBIA FLREETRELEL Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
BE Non-Financial Assets'
BEGHENENRBIA TETAZAKER RIS Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
IS of Hedge Accounting'
BEUSRSERNZE0R  SmTAS HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
AU REENE 14T EEEEERR HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
BE(ARTEaLSEE  HE HK(FRIC) — Int 21 Levies'

Z288)-RBE2A1%

T R-E-F— A — ARG 2 FE M
X RFFRTER ©

2 RIE-OFELA-RASAMERGR 2 FEEHE
R ARFRTER -

¢ AR -t A RSN R BERENE
SR BT AR TT AR BRI EEE

f RIE-OFEEA—-RASAMERG 2 FEEHE
R DBIBERERIN o

° RIZENF-A-RARZERABZENFE
BRI BHMEERFEHRRER -

AR IR A T

application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2014, with
earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2014, with earlier

Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined when

the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

exceptions.

January, 2016.

ALLIED CEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2014, with limited

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1st
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(for the year ended 31st December, 2013)

2.

V& R#TR] RAAEFT VBB I35

HER(HBMHHRELER D)
(#&)

R-ZZNFEMOBT MG REERE
ORI ABHERMEEDBRFTEZHNMR

io

BRI REERNFOREBRN —T—

TEEE - MASRAENDELEN
R IPHERRE - NN T —=Ff—
HHER] - AR EFHERFRE ©

BEMBmEEAFSRN T ER EB RN
T

BEGTERERI R ITA - R
MEtE | BENNMAC R REE
PERIZEH AN R FEEE - A
Bms  RARDRENRERERR
EHEBRARAKTAEMANRSRE
ERREEASOAS KHE A
BERRENBEROS TR —RIZE
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (conTINUED)

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

e With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as at
fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (conTINUED)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced
with the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the financial year
when HKFRS 9 is mandatory effective and that the application of
the new standard may have impact on amounts reported in respect
of the Group’s financial assets.

For other new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretation, the Directors anticipate that their application will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, and in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e | evel 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e |s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

® rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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(CONTINUED)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
palance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries prior to 1st January, 2010

The cost of the acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary is
measured at the consideration paid for the additional interest. The
goodwill is calculated as the difference between the consideration
paid and the carrying amount of the net assets of the subsidiary
attributable to the additional interest acquired.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries on or after 1st January, 2010

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries on or after 1st January, 2010 (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Business combination that took place after 1st January, 2005
but prior to 1st January, 2010

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business combinations” are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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(CONTINUED)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of properties held for sale is recognised when
the respective properties have been delivered to the buyers.
Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting
the above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Technical services income is recognised when services are
provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purpose other than construction in progress, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
less their residual value over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

On initial recognition, mining right acquired separately is recognised
at cost. After initial recognition, mining right is carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Gain or loss arising from derecognition of mining right is measured
at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets and mining right with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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(CONTINUED)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a liability and release as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments on land
use rights” in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
released over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Properties held for sale are stated at cost less any impairment loss.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated cost
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary difference. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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(CONTINUED)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,

and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
at the rate of exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are received or receivable as compensation
for expenses already incurred with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions. Payments made to state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments
to defined contribution plans where the Group’s obligations under
the plans are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan.
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(CONTINUED)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and bills receivables, other receivables, other principal
protected deposits, loan receivable, pledged short-term bank
deposits, time deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses. The accounting policy on impairment
loss of financial assets is set out below.
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(CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When the trade and other receivables are considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the group entities are recognised at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables, other
payables, amounts due to other related parties and bank

borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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(CONTINUED)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial assets, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

The policy of allowance for bad and doubtful debts of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and aged analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowance
may be required. As at 31st December, 2013, the carrying amount
of the trade receivables is HK$111,777,000 (net of impairment
losses of HK$29,377,000) (2012: HK$97,273,000 (net of
impairment losses of HK$29,409,000)). Details of the allowance for
bad and doubtful debts are disclosed in note 23.

Properties held for sale are stated at cost less any impairment
loss. The amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of properties and the market value
of the properties at the end of the reporting period which was
estimated by the Directors base on the current market condition. As
at 31st December, 2013, the carrying amount of the properties held
for sales is HK$2,448,000 (2012: HK$2,387,000), no impairment
loss is provided.

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and equipment
with respect to depreciation, management estimates the useful lives
of various categories of property, plant and equipment according
to the industry experiences over the usage of property, plant and
equipment and also by reference to the relevant industry norm. If
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment is less than
the original estimate useful lives due to changes in commercial
and technological environment, such difference will impact the
depreciation charge for the remaining period. As at 31st December,
2013, the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment is
HK$414,669,000 (2012: HK$414,696,000).
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UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the fair value of financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss is based on the
valuation performed by an independent professional valuer. The
valuation is principally based on discounted cash flow analysis. In
relying on the valuation report, the management has exercised their
judgement and is satisfied that the assumptions used in valuation
is reflective of the current market conditions. Details of the carrying
amount of financial assets designated as at fair value through profit
or loss and the assumptions used in the valuation are disclosed in
notes 6 and 25.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to owners of the Company through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which mainly
includes the bank borrowings disclosed in note 30 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained profits. The Directors review the
capital structure on an annual basis. As part of this review, the
Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through issuance
of new shares and share buy-back as well as the issuance of new
debts or the redemption of existing debts.
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@I HE 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
EMIAZER Categories of financial instruments
2013
FBT
HK$°000
SREE Financial assets
BEBBIEREREATEE Financial assets designated as at
BIEremEE(M:E25) fair value through profit or loss (note 25) 252,838
B K W SRR Loans and receivables
W E S F AR EREE Trade and bills receivables
(Bt&E23) (note 23) 339,271
E Ao EUGRIA (B IER Other receivables (included in other
EAbEUGRIA - e Rk receivables, deposits and
TafTEaR) (Fi3E24) prepayments) (note 24) 8,512
FEWERTTHI S A Bank interest income receivable
(BFERE b e ks - (included in other receivables,
e MM FE) (K5E24) deposits and prepayments) (note 24) 87
E A RAAIF 5K Other principal protected deposits
(Mfzx26) (note 26) 325,326
FEWE SR (MI7E20) Loan receivable (note 20) 34,208
B HRITE R Pledged short-term bank deposits 12,446
T BT sk (BRE27) Time deposits (note 27) 1,899
RITHEBRIIRE Bank balances and cash 37,615
759,364
1,012,202
KA EZ SRIBE Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
JEHE S FRIE K N =R Trade and bills payables
(Mf7x28) (note 28)
E At AT FRIE (B IR EAD, Other payables (included in other payables
FERZIERE YRS ) (FizE29) and deposits received) (note 29)
BEYE  BELEZEEMIIE  Payables for acquisition of property,
(BIEREAMENRIAR plant and equipment (included in other
Bz ) (Mi7E29) payables and deposits received) (note 29)
HipfEstc & B8R (BER Other accrued operating expenses
EEMRERERIES) (included in other payables and
(Mf7%29) deposits received) (note 29)
R E b B8RS 5 SRR Amounts due to other related parties
(MfzE40(c)) (note 40(c))
HRITEE (M1FE30) Bank borrowings (note 30)
EKRIEARER AF ALLIED CEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

2012
TAT
HK$'000

308,956

247,299

7,472

10,263
216,613
33,068
79,398

61,729
30,162

686,004

994,960

138,470

230

12,789

4,378

1,870
101,996

259,733
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SRTEFBNABNFRE - BE%E
S@MT AENRBEET SRR (FI=RE
SNER RS R A ERERR) - EERR KRR
MR o AADRES X F R R SR
T o EE@EE@& ERZER R - MR
B B 7B R SREUE & FE i e

™ EkE
FIE @b
AEENRFEENERRREERE TE

BERMEHRITER THER > Bl
BRFRITEEEB(EHZSRITEED
E R EROE

AEBENRSREN XRE R T BT SR
THRELRRTEERB(ARZEFRITEE
E@ﬁ'I%E%EW&SO) HoAth A = S5 45 18
MHEFR (BB AR RANEER) BRI B E
}ﬁEﬁF‘ﬁH%%ﬁFB&ﬂT (I EERITHERZE
RN )& MFE

K%ﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁf:’&ﬁ%'%?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

ﬁﬂZﬂTﬂ. EIRE R XK
&H—rﬁ’\ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂiﬁﬂTﬂ S
TmHXFﬁﬁﬁﬁ@J

ZK%F)’T@EZiEE%%%UZ‘EEL B2 F1E
R RBERRED - AEBZRSRE
MEEBREIEEPRAEER 2 RITEES
XZ%%%E{TH%%)%,~\E53¢ BARRITAT
WA IR ED 2 R

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed above. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
in a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to certain
fixed-rate pledged short-term bank deposits, time deposits, loan
receivable and bank borrowings (see note 30 for details of these
bank borrowings).

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to variable-
rate bank balances and bank borrowings (see note 30 for details of
these bank borrowings). For interest rate linked structured deposits,
which are grouped under other principal protected deposits,
interest varies depending on the movement of the Shanghai
Interbank Offered Rate (“SHIBOR”).

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to mitigate its
exposure associated with interest rate risk. However, management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider necessary actions
when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate and the interest rates quoted by the People’s Bank of
China arising from the Group’s bank borrowings.
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E@MTR®)

misEkE(E)
HBETHT

AT SURE DT D ER RS HREHRT
REER NUF BRIRITIE R T A T A E S
BV R E R MEERE o DT RE NS B
AHFEENAESERNBREAFE—ERF
o 20088 F 2 LR (FRRTTEEM T ) &
168 F 2B IN(RLERTT BRI 5 ) KR E R
U= SR e BB AT © TBEHRTT
RN XA REMREN T —EAR
TE T -

MR 7712 E AR R R 1 0,5 420018 25
FTHREEMAISEREEIFIE QXL
BEEEZ T =K -_ZT——F+—-8
=t+t—BIEFEZHAMB DRI 10
1,318,000 7T K2.1,545,000/ 7T °

BEAN - W SR 7T 45 &R 4B B ) 38 0015 16 24
FTHREEMAISEEREIFIE - AIXE
BHz—_F—=FK=_F——-F+=H
=+—HLEFE ZmHi#ES Bl 142,000
785 7T 52.34,0005 7T °

R B 2 RARBV R R 5 B 17 R
MER - HFEBURR HRITREIRFI%
WA RSB MFE - PRELTEIR L
ERTT I [R] A% DAOM 205 B [ o B E T 72
E o RIBN B BEBIET R IERK &
2 _EBIRITRE R ZEF AR T %= 4500
BEEF(ZT——F : THK40E2F)
B - MRS EELAE - ERNERTHR
ERERRZEHLENRSERM - BE
E_T-—FF+-A=-+-RILFEZEH
MY |EREEH -

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rate for non-derivative instruments relating to
bank balances and floating-rate bank borrowings at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
assets and liabilities outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. 200 basis points increase
or decrease for bank borrowings and 15 basis points increase
for bank balances represent management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. It is expected that the
interest rate for bank balances will not decrease in the next twelve
months from end of the reporting period.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by 200 basis points
in respect of bank borrowings and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the years ended 31st December,
2013 and 2012 would decrease/increase by HK$1,318,000 and
HK$1,545,000 respectively.

In addition, if interest rates had been increased by 15 basis points
in respective of bank balances and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the years ended 31st December,
2013 and 2012 would increase by HK$42,000 and HK$34,000
respectively.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through its interest rate
linked structured deposits which are principal protected and their
interest varies depending on the movement of the SHIBOR. The
sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure to
the fluctuation of the SHIBOR. Based on the terms of the interest
rate linked structured deposits, the interest would be adjusted only
when there is at least 500 basis points decrease (2012: 440 basis
points decrease) in the SHIBOR. The management considers that
the opportunity for such movement is remote based on current
market situation and there is no significant change on the profit for
the year ended 31st December, 2013.
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FMRBAELRR - AEBZEET
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BeRZE—=F+_A=+—H &%
BFRA BT ENRITAER - REMEH
T RRRRITEE(ZE— 24 : R174
B REMER T FIRNRITER) - ME
TYREEBR TR - A&EH
AT EARRA SN SRR - AT - EIEE
ZYERINERR RN EFEREZEL
HEAINERR o

BT (Y IFEREEERNINEER)T
ENEBEENEBRENREELDT

BE Assets

aE Liabilities

TREMASINAEBGARE L ST EFA
KT B#5% 2 BRRERE - B BY AN
[E RSP Al gL B 1T AR R A 2 8K
B R E5% - GURRE DT EIEAETTEHE
ZEMEERSEBAERRIRE RN
BEFE R5% 2 BENEITHRE R - TR
EEENRRARE BT ERE% AR EE
SEFE I o ZERAREE L EITT T IRE%E
B AFERNELERSERERTE -

Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rate. The Group’s operations are mainly in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) other than Hong Kong. As at 31st December, 2013,
the Group has bank balances, amounts due to other related parties
and bank borrowings (2012: bank balances, amounts due to other
related parties and bank borrowings) denominated in HK$ which
is the currency other than the functional currency of the respective
group entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

The carrying amounts of monetary assets and monetary liabilities
that are denominated in HK$, which is a currency other than the
functional currency of the group entities are as follows:

2013 2012
TR TAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
1,426

75,224

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in RMB against HKS. 5% sensitivity rate represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis includes the financial
assets and financial liabilities denominated in HK$, and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5% change
in foreign currency rate. A positive number below indicates an
increase in profit for the year where RMB strengthen 5% against
HK$. For a 5% weakening of RMB against in HK$, there would be

MATZ &G REa R - an equal and opposite impact on the profit for the year, and the
balance below would be negative.

2013 2012

FHER FHT

HK$’000 HK$'000

R Z S5 7| Profit for the year 2,767
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A ERERE

A E ST AR AT B ERE
ZeMEERTHLEEAR - TEHR
AR - HAFDORR EE BB
FH - ERNEATOR - BB EEHLmE
—SEARE - FUAE R FIHEE S -

FERR

AEENEERRTIBHEEWEZFIAR
FEW IR R B A EURIR ~ fRE B B8
REAFEEREZSMEE - HMRA
i BUREXR EEFPEHRTE
R ERFR R IRITAESRAR

AEEEAR ZEFRERITRETMEARSE
BARXMBEE &SEERR - BE
RER B MR KT 2 SR E iR & Rt
BEZREE -

RTHBEERREERE  EEECRIK
—XERBEREEERE  FEHER
HtERER - ARERRIIRETEHRE
BEET - HPISREABIHRE - AR
EXEPHMERMARN  AREFAEFELE
IR EREEEM - ptoh - BERETE
Higs S ERE R ES - RREEEEMD
W R IR 2 R Y Bl 58 - IAREAR LA A] I
ElE&BEFL R HHRERRE -

RZE—=%+-_A=+—H  &x&EH
BRI (E 141,761,000 0 (=& — —F
45,333,000/ 70 ) 2 EWEE AR EIEE
TR FRRITERZBITEARIESR - Z
ERWEIEZEERRER °
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

Market risk (continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its financial
assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss, which are
principal protected structured deposits and their interest varies
depending on the movement of exchange rates. Based on current
market situation, the management does not expect further material
movement and accordingly sensitivity analysis is not presented.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and bills
and other receivables, financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, other principal protected deposits, loan
receivable, pledged short-term bank deposits, time deposits and
bank balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise credit risk, management has delegated a
team to be responsible for the determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. Independent companies
are engaged to investigate the credibility of customers, and
guarantees or pledges of assets provided by them on a needed
basis. In addition, management reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt, bills receivables and other receivables
regularly to ensure that adequate impairment losses are recognised
for irrecoverable amounts.

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group’s bills receivables with
carrying amount of HK$141,761,000 (2012: HK$45,333,000) are
bankers’ acceptances guaranteed by banks with high credit ratings
in the PRC. The credit risk on these bills receivables is limited.

The credit risk on financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, other principal protected deposits and loan
receivable are limited because they are principal protected deposits
or unlisted debt securities which are deposited in or issued by
reputable banks and financial institution in the PRC.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the Group’s
pledged short-term bank deposits, time deposits and bank
balances are deposited with banks of high credit ratings in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings and on
balances mentioned above, the Group does not have significant
concentration of credit risk on trade and bills and other receivables
as the exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on
bank borrowings as a significant source of liquidity. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings.

The following tables detail the Group’s contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows.
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6. EFIT R &) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ConTINUED)
sREREEEENEE) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
REBESRFSEREK
Liquidity and interest risk tables
mETH
LYk RER
Weighted BEREMR
average  HMEE  1Z3EE  IEEZE Total AIE
effective  Less than 1-3 3 months to 1255 5%ME undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate 1 month months iyear  1-5years 5+years  cashflows amount

TR TEn TEn TR TEn THRL TEn
% HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000

R=Z-=%+-A=t-0 At31stDecember, 2013
EYESERENZER  Tradeand bils payables and

Eft TR other payables 154,189
3R ER Dividends payable to non-
BRE controling interests 8,817
IR Amounts e to non-controling
08 interests 90
HEE-T8 Bank borroviings - fixed rate 11,587
BAEE-38 Bank borrowings - variable rate 87,640
262,383
g
Uik RER
Weighted Renses
aeage  SRMER 1E3ER  SEAEIE Total KAk
efectve  Lessthan -3 3monthsto 1255 5%EBLE undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months 1 year 1-5 years 5+years  cashflows amount

T T T T TR TETL T
% HK$ /000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000

RZE-—E+-A=1-H At31stDecember, 2012
ERE5TERENZER  Trade and bils payables and

EftNE ofher payables - 65,280 47948 42,639 - - 155,867 155,867
RIS Dividends payable to non-
k& controling interests - 1,150 - - - - 1,150 1,150
RFBRER Amounts due to non-controling
I interests - 720 - - - - 720 720
RIEE-F8 Bank borrowings - fixed rate 5.04 - 4,000 - - - 4,000 391
ROEE-98 Bank borrowings - variable rate 379 - 29815 28212 43434 - 101,461 98,045
67,150 81,763 70,851 43,434 - 263,198 259,733
i EBA RSB RN E HARE T < A5t The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
MEHRER - A LMIFTESHAR for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change, if
RZETEZ SR EE - changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of

interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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6. T A

A FREEAASENAEESESR
BERBEZATEENER -

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

This note provides information about how the Group determines
fair value of various financial assets and liabilities.

DNFEESER
SEEE AFEER Fair value fHEFZEZRTEZH
Financial assets Fair value at hierarchy Valuation technique and key inputs
2013 2012
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB SRR E=@ RRHSRE - RBRREREE
REEBAESZ Level 2 LR (IR 5 A SR 25 BRI N E S0
TRIEE —[EX TS EG A 5| (R IR B M AR #E) &
BB R BHONREERRBESRE - T
Financial assets HURBAEESE R HEHF
designated as at fair (WER)BEE R 2 B KRR -
value through profit Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
or loss — Exchange estimated based on the probabilities of
rate linked structured future exchange rate movements (which are
deposits 308,956 modelled using the implied volatility prices

RBE_T—=6FK-_ZFT——F+=-A
—t+—HIFE EF—H F_HREF=
Wz A e o

E=RB/ANKEELRA M HRR NI HH
KRAFIENEREER SR B EZREE
HEENFEERS -

at the end of the reporting period from

the foreign exchange options market) and
contracted interest rates, discounted at a
rate that reflects the credit risk of the Group
or the counterparties, as appropriate.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year
ended 31st December, 2013 and 2012.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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the year ended 31st December, 2013)
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) °

7. REVENUE

Revenue represents the sales amount from the manufacturing and
sales of cement and clinker and trading of cement net of discount
and sales related tax.

2013 2012

FHERT FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEMEENKE R R Manufacture and sales of cement and clinker 372,098
BEEKE Trading of cement 332,600
704,698

7 ERE#

ERM B MEERIESHR L2 DB IEK -
FERE 2 D BB ARRAEBRE D 2R
MERIERELE  AF2HREHHEES
ERRERN  NHSDMETERDE
MEFRAERHE -

RETER  AKBEREBEEERMRBE
B—EXBEML  UREF—ELED
2B Ok~ AR IR AEEMEE KR
BEUARRHKMRS (10F) - TELE
RBBRBEARHERS - ARRZXMRE
FARBEERBEBEEEREXBEMN
WA~ %48 BERAE  ARBAEH
ZHMEERDBRED R BENEAR
BIRA RPN EEERBE - WR
RAEE 2 D ARRA R D EBRA D RIER
REBRBLEMEm NS RAEAFEEMN
BUWARS@F] -

IREMNBASFOT :

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating segments to be
identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess
its performance.

For management purpose, the Group operates in one business
unit based on its products and service, and has one operating
segment: manufacture and sales of cement, clinker and slag,
trading of cement and provision of technical services, if any. The
chief operating decision maker monitors the revenue, results, assets
and liabilities of its business unit as a whole based on the monthly
sales reports, monthly delivery reports and monthly management
accounts, and considers the segment assets and segment liabilities
of the Group have included all assets and liabilities as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position respectively, and
considers the segment revenue and segment results of the Group
have represented all revenue and profit for the year as stated in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income respectively.

The revenue of the major products is analysed as follows:

2013 2012
FET FT
HK$’000 HK$’000

HEMNEEREE - Manufacture and sales and trading of:
e Cement 677,359
2t Clinker 27,339
704,698
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8. DEER @) 8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (COnTINUED)
EETEEFNER Information about major customers
BEEE NSRRI AGAREER No revenue from transaction with single external customer is
REFWRARI0%HIAL - HE-T—— amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the year. For
F+-A=+—HILEE kB —REF the year ended 31st December, 2012, revenue from a customer
Z WA 73,009,000 7T © EBHAEE amounting to HK$73,009,000 individually represented more than
WA Z10%A L o 10% of the Group’s revenue.
ih & & R Geographical information
AR AEFE DI AERAMNTENE As all the Group’s revenue is derived from customers based in
P mMAEBE RS #pIEE(RIBEEM the PRC and all the Group's identifiable assets are principally
BEID)NEBMAFE - WIWEZS = located in the PRC by location of assets, no geographical segment
DEER} o information is presented.
9. Hitlr A 9. OTHER INCOME
2013 2012
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REBRITZFEWA Interest income from banks 6,627
FEWE TR U A Interest income from loan receivable 8,317
LM ERBERE Overprovision of listing expenses 1,432
BB — RE Government subsidy — value added tax
bl =g refunded 7,302
BB — EAth Government subsidy — others 5,629
FIEWA Sundry income 1,776
31,083
10. @& B A 10.FINANCE COSTS
SHEAREARAFTFABHEEZRITER The amounts represent the interests on bank loans wholly
FE o repayable within five years.
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MN.EE - BERSREEAER
<=

EEE

ENHEMAE(ZE—ZF  REB)ARQ
RE=ZMET ¢

HITES: Executive Directors:
BEETE Mr. Ng Qing Hai
ZEA%E M LiChiKong
RBEE Mr. Yu Zhong
BT Independent
Ex. Non-Executive Directors:
BRERSAE Mr. Chan Sze Chung
BEA e Mr. Cheng Kin Chung
Ll . Ms. Doris Yang Yan Tung

11.DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration paid or payable to each of the six (2012: six)
directors of the Company were as follows:

2013

e HmEE BKER

REMBR  BRRAHE FHEIfX

Salaries/ 214 Retirement
EEHe service Performance benefits [ S
Directors’ fee and related scheme Total
fees other benefits bonuses contributions emoluments
TR TR TR TR TR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

1,507
(Kiita)
(O CE))
156

296
(Ktztp)
(note b)
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MN.EE  EERSHREEAE

M)
BITES: Executive Directors:
BEERE Mr. Ng Qing Hai
TEMIEE Mr. Li Chi Kong
FBELE Mr. Yu Zhong
B AT Independent

Bx: Non-Executive Directors:
PREBRRELE Mr. Chan Sze Chung
BERLAE Mr. Cheng Kin Chung
BaRZ L Ms. Doris Yang Yan Tung

REBZ2E_FT-—=FR_F——F+_A
=t BIFE  BEEFHERITANE -

—REEN-RBEBEARREARERER
ZRFEZ AR B ARWERME - %
REAARERTEERSE - ARAEE
IABEEREMYFARRIESTRETY
EEEABMEEHERGUNER  ZER
E BHEEM 400 PTikE 2 BB REE A
o

T EEREBRANIZEEEABNREAR
SEEBHB REGE YA HRE LiiE
E AP E447,0008 T (ZE—=
F :101,00087T) EREELERA -

11.DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (conTiINUED)

2012

e/ IREE RIRER

KEmEF BRRGE BEGEA

Salaries/ A Retirement
BEEHE service  Performance benefits [ e k]
Directors’ fee and related scheme Total
fees  other benefits bonuses  contributions emoluments
AT AT AT AT THL

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000

10 2,194 847 98 3,149
(Hfita)
(note a)
10 148 159 7 324
10 527 298 69 904
(Hizto)
(note b)
10 66 - - 76
10 86 - - 96
10 66 - - 76
60 3,087 1,304 174 4,625

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the years
ended 31st December, 2013 and 2012.

A Director received remuneration from a company, or a subsidiary
of such company which has significant beneficial interests in the
Company. Such company provided management services to the
Group and charged the Group a fee, which has been included in
management service fee as disclosed in note 40(a), for services
provided by the Director as well as other management personnel
who were not Directors and staff of the Company.

The above-mentioned management service fee is calculated by
reference to the time devoted by the management personnel on
the affairs of the Group and can be apportioned to the Director
mentioned above. The total of such apportioned amounts, which
has been included in the above table, is HK$447,000 (2012:
HK$101,000).
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11.

94

BEEX - - EERSHREEBAE
M€ =)

@ SEIEFACHAELSNTERZAI—FE
BREVIRIEA ) AE B AR5 812 BIRIEAT -

b SEEFACHAELSNTFERZA—FE
BREVISTEA o A E S & BB AT 8 2 BRRTEAT -

AEBLERSFMALHAME(ZE
——F  MB)RARAESR  FEZHE
EREXTURE -BE_FT—=F+=
A=+—HLFE  HBp=%(=F—=
FZR)RSFMALTZBMEMT

11.DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (conTiINUED)

Notes:

(@ The amount represented the actual discretionary bonus of the preceding
year and the actual bonus on monthly target scheme approved and paid to
the Director during the year.

(b) The amount represented the actual discretionary bonus of the preceding
year and the actual bonus on monthly sales incentive scheme approved
and paid to the Director during the year.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
two (2012: two) were the directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosure above. The emoluments
of the remaining three (2012: three) highest paid individuals for the
year ended 31st December, 2013 were as follows:

2013 2012
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fo RHEMER Salaries and other benefits 1,718
BRIFTE 2 B4 Performance related bonuses 365
RIRENE B Retirement benefits scheme contributions 69
2,152

HMe N T T3EE - Their emoluments were within the following bands:
2013 2012
EE#E EE#HE
Number of Number of
employees employees
1,000,000/ 7Tk A~ HK$1,000,000 or below 2
1,000,0017& 7C 2 1,500,000/8 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1

REBEE_ZTE—=F+_A=+—HIt#F
B AEEBMERNAZRSHMA M
FHE(ZT——F : £) » LAMEARS]
HEIMAKIARE B RIREN

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, no emoluments (2012:
Nil) were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group.

Bt AR AR AR ALLIED CEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED



RE W RRKE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BE-Z—=F+"A=+—HILFE)
(for the year ended 31st December, 2013)

MN.EE  EERSHREEAE

[ AL D)

AEERRERBABREREG(ZT—Z
F:RBIRETRAESR  REZMEE
REXFUARE BE-_FT—=F1+_#
=t+—HIEFE - AR T ——F:

11.DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (conTiINUED)

Of the senior management of the Group, six (2012: six) were the
directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosure above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2012:
four) individuals for the year ended 31st December, 2013 were as

WE)ATZBEmT - follows:
2013 2012
FHxT FETT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Fe REHMER Salaries and other benefits 1,512
BRFAE ZEA Performance related bonuses 292
RIREFIET B Retirement benefits scheme contributions 69
1,873

HE# e T5IEE -

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

2013 2012

EEHE EEHE

Number of Number of

employees employees

1,000,000/ 7Tk A~ HK$1,000,000 or below 3
1,000,001& 7C 2 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1

BRERABZBERANFREERSR
EEABZEAER —HIREE

BREBAEZIEABEARAE THE
NE(BN EBBAEERAR (N L& L
Bl - IWRBE ERAKRBRARRILE
EREACORERAR AR (TR R ]))5RA
M E2EDET 8 o RENETEIIRER -

a. mAEEE

b. FHEERAR

c. HEKERAEZEHE

d HE=

e. ME=E

f. BEEKLRRR

g. =
ZREBEFEREELERTEBZE - M

REBEANEZEERR - AIZAZE
BEARRE RFKTEE RZEARR
FHEMED B RIRAAH LA -

The biographies of members of the senior management are
disclosed in the section on the Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management in this annual report.

The performance related bonuses included an incentive scheme
adopted by the Company’s certain subsidiaries, namely Shanghai
Allied Cement Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai SAC”), Shandong Allied
Wangchao Cement Limited and Shandong Shanghai Allied Cement
Co., Ltd. (“Shandong SAC”). Criteria on the incentive scheme are:

Amount of profits

Average cost of production

Quantities of cement and clinker produced
Electricity consumption

Coal consumption

Aggregate amount of aging debts

Sales volume

@ pQ0oTw®

Each company bases on its annual budgeted performance to set
its targets. If pre-set targets are achieved in a particular month, all
staff will be entitled to performance related bonus as determined for
in each target level as well as on individual’s assessed performance
during the subject month.
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12.5{18 12.TAXATION
2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HIE(ZE)ER BT - The (charge) credit comprises:
BN EATR IR Current tax
— R EMEE — PRC Enterprise Income Tax (19,730) (18,326)
—EBNE - Hong Kong Profits Tax (19) (19)
(19,749) (18,345)
BEFE 2 BB Overprovision in prior years
— AR ERER — PRC Enterprise Income Tax 3,335 3,666
RIERIE (M17E34) Deferred tax (note 34) 18 5,295

96

REMEMSRIYIERREHE AR
BERGHE - R BI85 /R 8 F
B ZBERAMREIGR25% ° —RINEEKIL
ZHBRABNPEEEMERREE T —
e o B B 8 X B AT S 4 B A A PR B3R 7T
ZTEMBREAE o

EENEHEMEFEGERF R
16.5%51H °

(16,396) (9,384)

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at the rates
applicable to respective subsidiaries. The applicable tax rate for
subsidiaries established in the PRC is 25% for both years. The PRC
Enterprise Income Tax for a subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong
is calculated at the withholding tax rate prevailing in the PRC on the
interest income from lendings to a PRC subsidiary.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.
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12.8{18 (=)

AREFHRAX L EGSERREM2EK
SRR ZBRBLADS FE BRI T

B A0 A1 as A

BRSSP R 25%T 8 2

HE(ZZE——%F :25%)
T HZ

FRIER &
BEZRFEWAZ

REzE

RERZ RIARB R HIATE
BRBEARER ZHIREEZ

MBTE
FEMBAEREZ

MBARZ TRBE ZZE

R0 IREF 2 I

BIRALE 2 P B TR
BEFEBERE

HAth

REFHRIAZ H

BARMEERTERE T ZRE AR

ZIEFERE -

12.TAXATION (conTINUED)

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

2013
THET
HK$’000

Profit before taxation 62,618

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of

25% (2012: 25%) (15,655)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for

tax purpose (4,704)
Tax effect of income not taxable for

tax purpose 1,961
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (616)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously

not recognised 71
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

operating in other jurisdictions 557
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings (498)
PRC withholding tax upon dividend declared (666)
Overprovision in prior years 3,335
Others (181)
Taxation charge for the year (16,396)

group companies operating in the PRC.

2012
TAET
HK$’000

46,516

(11,629)
(1,736)

516
(518)

238

467
743
(1,026)
3,666
(105)

(9,384)

The domestic tax rate represents the statutory tax rate of the major
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13

98

BETERY T BEGRE M BERRM TR
LOFBRBZH—REFTRETIHARAE
ERBTCEHEABZEERBERD
i o

RBE_FT—=F+_A=+—HLHF
B AEERAANEEREERES TH—
FAA RIS A B AR & 7,016,000/ 7T
(ZZT——% :6,529,000/87T) ° ZHEHIA
WARFTA LX) B TERLREE -

AN B A 13.PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
2013 2012
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
KERRFTIE Profit for the year has been arrived at after
MR (A - charging (crediting):
BETER(BEESHE) Staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments)
FehHMER Salaries and other costs 22,630 22,472
RNEFFT B Contributions to retirement benefits schemes 3,743 3,206
26,373 25,678
ZE A & Auditor’s remuneration 961 1,000
R A HHFEERA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 632,912 645,867
PR 2 B35 (B R Amortisation of mining right (included in
THERR) administrative expenses) 193 187
Y% - BEMERETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 21,739 20,418
HIERITERE Total amortisation and depreciation 21,932 20,605
T {F R TR EFRIE Release of prepaid lease payments on land use
B rights 198 193
HjE&ﬁhﬁﬁ%¥ ERHE 2 Net (gain) loss on disposal and write-off of
(Wzs) BB 558 property, plant and equipment (43) 28
MEIKEHERS Operating lease rentals in respect of premises 819 381

The staff costs do not include the apportionment of management
service fee as disclosed in notes 11 and 40 to the consolidated
financial statements for a Director as well as certain management
personnel who are not Directors or staff of the Company.

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Group paid
HK$7,016,000 (2012: HK$6,529,000) services fee to a personnel
services company providing temporary labours to the Group. Such
amounts are excluded from the total staff costs as mentioned on
above.
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14.8RER 14.EARNINGS PER SHARE
NN FIL R FE(L 2 BIRE R EF| TR 15 LA The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to
TEETE - owners of the Company is based on the following data:
2013 2012
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
7| Earnings
FUAGTESRERZFZ Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings
EF) (AR IR E per share (profit for the year attributable to
IRE S A owners of the Company) 26,834
& A%
Shares Shares
RHEE Number of shares
RUGTESRERRZTZ Weighted average number of
T imARNE ordinary shares for the purpose of basic
SEE 8 earnings per share 652,336,066
AR B 5 K 3R 5 HA SR I SR 25 1T 7E 50 No diluted earnings per share has been presented for both years
RBELTRER WA ERREFEZSE as there was no outstanding potential ordinary share during both
IREEEZA) o years and at the end of the reporting periods.
15. 2 15.DIVIDEND
ARAESEE([EFE ) TERRNEE The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) does not
—E—=F+_A=1t—BI-FEREK recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31st
B(ZZ——F : REIRESI2EMN) - December, 2013 (2012: Final dividend of HK2 cents per share).
RAFE  RRARBEERRIESRKRE The Company declared and paid dividends of HK$13,200,000
13,200,000/ 70 (=& — =4 : 13,200,000 (2012: HK$13,200,000), representing HK2 cents per share being
BT T ——F 7 RHAKREER2E the final dividend of 2012 (2012: HK2 cents per share being the
WZZE—=F : ZT——F2HFIREE special dividend of 2011), during the year.
A2l -
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16.91% - BMEKRRE 16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
e
BRREEN HERRMG
Buildings HELE  BERME REIR Furniture, pat::
and Leasehold Plantand Construction fixtures and Motor &%
structures improvements ~ machinery  inprogress  equipment vehicles Total

TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

53 COST
W-2-—%-f-H At 1st January, 2012 199,671 3,998 250,678 1,000 4,156 8,183 467,586
RE Additions 3,222 - 2,397 22,139 375 24 57,374
HEREH Disposals and write-off - - - - - (364) (364)
BHNE Reclassffication 1,882 - 751 (2,633 - - -
WZE——F+-A=+—H At31stDecember, 2012 233,775 3,998 253,726 20,506 4,531 8,060 524,596
[ A% Effect of exchange

-7 adjustments 5,918 101 6,458 519 114 204 13,314
NE Additions 1,063 = 1,645 12,537 313 1,662 17,010
LERHH Disposals and write-off (18 - - - - (1252) (1.270)
] Reclassfication 3,089 - 453 (3,680) 138 - -
R Adjustment for

Faps overprovision - - (5,663) - - - (5,669)
RZZE-=F+-A=+—H At31st December, 2013 243,827 4,009 256,519 29,882 5,006 8,564 547,987
i DEPRECIATION
W-E-—%F-F-H At 1st January, 2012 20,108 574 62,569 - 2,631 3,910 89,792
TEEEE Provided for the year 5,995 125 12,954 - 356 933 20,418
NHE RisEE Eliminated on disposals and

4 write-off - - - - - (310) (310)
WZE—ZF+-A=1—H At31st December, 2012 26,103 699 75,528 - 2,987 4,588 109,900
5 A Effect of exchange

e adustments 661 18 1919 - 76 116 2,790
TEERE Provided for the year 6,830 128 13,293 - 370 1,118 21,739
R E R Eliminated on disposals and

Eaf wite-off @) - - - - (1,108 (1,111)
WZZE-=F+-A=1—H At31stDecember, 2013 33,591 845 90,735 - 3433 4714 133,318
BEE CARRYING VALUES
WZE-=F+-A=1—H At31st December, 2013 210,236 3,264 165,784 29,882 1,663 3,850 414,669
WZE—ZF+-R=1—H At3istDecember, 2012 207,672 3,299 178,208 20,506 1,644 3,472 414,6%
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16.M% - BMEKRE #)

A EWE - BB Mt (FEZ TAERRSM) TD

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The above property, plant and equipment other than construction

NEERATERITE - in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

EFREEY 2.5%—9% Buildings and structures 2.5% — 9%

HERE 45%—18% Leasehold improvements 4.5% —18%

l'r‘?i%&@%“ 5% —9% Plant and machinery 5% — 9%

R, - HEREE 9% —20% Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% —20%

8 18% Motor vehicles 18%

AEEHETURTERETHEORE
ZHEELTH -

RZE—=F+"A=+—08 " AE£EIK
HEBRTE A £ 595,629,000/ TTHIEF
DEEYARBE RER(ZT—= ¢
92,149,000 70) * UEE —THEITE R
28,905,080 0 (—FE——F : 29,500,000
BIT) °

The buildings of the Group are situated on the leasehold land in the
PRC under medium-term leases.

At 31st December, 2013, the Group pledged its buildings and
structures and plant and machinery with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$95,629,000 (2012: HK$92,149,000) to secure for a bank
loan of HK$28,905,080 (2012: HK$29,500,000).

17. R ERHME2EE 17.DEPOSITS FOR EQUIPMENT AND
MACHINERIES
e MR E——F LA+ /\HE] On 28th September, 2012, Shanghai SAC entered into

:IEE%,\T;?%% LABEE B TRl M
%% - (B A A R % 380,000,000 T (48
B R4481,013,0008 L (T — —F
469,136,000 7C)) - —IBHEEHHEIET
BEZRENMNEEETEHERARMR LS
HRARBZHKELEERMEEEE
([B8E#FEE )  XEERARB)T:E
PZEREREBREEER RITE—=
F+—-_A=+—8 LGt ESEH:IE
EERZETARBEZSEHARER
R 68,270,000 L ( =& — — 4 : AEﬂ%
68,270,000 ) (18 & 7 4986,418,0005% 7T
ZE— T :84,284,000/8TT)) e RH 2

three purchase agreements for the purchases of certain
equipment and machineries at the aggregate consideration of
RMB380,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$481,013,000
(2012: HK$469,136,000)). The equipment and machineries
under the three purchase agreements were purchased for future
use in the development of new cement production facilities
at Bailonggang, Pudong, Shanghai (“Bailonggang Project”)
and the Group and the Company does not intend to retain
such equipment and machineries for their own use. As at 31st
December, 2013, Shanghai SAC has settled the respective first
payments of the total consideration in an aggregate amount
of RMB68,270,000 (2012: RMB68,270,000) (equivalent to
approximately HK$86,418,000 (2012: HK$84,284,000)) under the

HEHER AR BHOMNAE T ——F+ three purchase agreements. Details of the transaction were set
A=BR-_ZT——F+—A+HBZA M out in the announcement and circular of the Company dated 3rd
i A R AN S B TS R M 7138 o October, 2012 and 15th November, 2012 respectively and note 38

to these consolidated financial statements.
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18. L it fFE R 2 FA(SHHERE

18.PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE
RIGHTS

2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TR TERTEE FRIE The prepaid lease payments on
B land use rights comprise:
FHEIMLNTZ Leasehold land in the PRC under
REAE medium-term lease 7,679
BIREMIEL Z 2T ¢ Analysed for reporting purposes as:
IETE Non-current 7.486
B Current 193
7,679

HE T DA RRIREERGRFBEDL -

19. BRIEHE

m

RZZT——%—HF—H

AL AR
RZF——F+=-A=+—H
P BEE

AEEHG

RZF—=F+-A=1+—H

AREE
RZF—=F+-A=1+—H

R-ZE——F+=_A=+—H

FEARARESNE X RRBRE /10
F o UARKEENERSBEI0FHER
BB o BRARIE VIR EARZN B AEE AT
P HAB0F M 3K -

The leasehold land is released on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of leases.

19.MINING RIGHT

THETT
HK$’ 000
COST
At 1st January, 2012 and 1st January, 2013 9,114
Effect on exchange adjustments 231
At 31st December, 2013 9,345
AMORTISATION
At 1st January, 2012 1,235
Charge for the year 187
At 31st December, 2012 1,422
Effect on exchange adjustments 36
Charge for the year 193
At 31st December, 2013 1,651
CARRYING VALUE
At 31st December, 2013 7,694
I
At 31st December, 2012 7,692

The license period for the mining of limestone quarry located in the
PRC is 10 years and renewable for another 10 years or more at
minimal charges. The mining right is amortised on a straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life of 50 years.
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20. ENE R 20.LOAN RECEIVABLE
2013 2012
FET FiET
HK$’000 HK$'000
W& Loan receivable
EFEER Trust loan 33,068
TMEMER ZHHTAT ¢ Analysed for reporting purposes as:
IERE Non-current 33,068
ED Current _
33,068
EEERRE —BEXTETASEEA The trust loan represents units that are denominated in RMB with
AR #25,000,0007T (1HE 731,646,000/ an aggregate principal amount of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent
JTL(ZZ— =1 : 30,864,000/ T) )W A A to HK$31,646,000 (2012: HK$30,864,000)) in a trust scheme.
REHEZ B - 5 BINEREE The trust scheme is secured by pledged assets. The trust loan is
ERER - ZEXEFEIBERAERKIE classified as loans and receivables and is repayable in November
WRIBW R =T —NFE+— ARELERT 2014 at par by the trust and carries effective interest of 11.16% per
BEERERFEA11.16% o annum.
21.51ESHEMXE 21.PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
ERRTIIBAIIN R B 2 2 - The balance represented properties located in the PRC.
278 22.INVENTORIES
2013 2012
FaxT FiET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HFEBRETHIER : Inventories consist of the following:
B Raw materials 36,037
& Work in progress 304
BIpK Finished goods 32,189
68,530
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23.EWEZRERERRE 23.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

2013 2012

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEUE 5 kI Trade receivables 126,682
B EUCE B R A B Less: Allowance for trade receivables (29,409)
97,273

U EE Bills receivables 150,026
247,299

ERZBBREEASE B ST P MIE
RITAGIESR - BERARERMEE -

AEBZBRB/ETEESEE—BNT
1208 EVFERFEZEEY - RIEHRIE
BRZEAH25 2 RWE FFALEKRE
B B RIZREE) 2 BRI DTN

Included in bills receivables are bankers’ acceptances, commercial
acceptances and post-dated cheques from the Group’s trade
customers.

The Group has a policy of allowing its trade customers credit
periods normally ranging from 120 days to 1 year. The aged
analysis of trade and bills receivables, net of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts, is presented based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period as follows:

2013 2012

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’'000

0Z290H 0 to 90 days 161,594
912180H 91 to 180 days 58,306
1812365H 181 to 365 days 25,318
HBiE1F Over 1 year 2,081
247,299

EERMEAHELA - ARSI EEE
EPZEREEZNEETEFP 2EERE -
BEFZRBERFDBFRIMAX » £199%
(ZT——F : £999% ) MV EHIBR B i 10 e
WE 508 B SR R A B SR (E -
AEBEEEERR - NG IR S8l
OB E 2 FEYE 5 5008 M B IR 1B A5 BR
EEERRY BRFEFPEAKERZA
RPAERRE -

N-E—=F+-"A=+—H8 x&EEx
FEUE SFUE N BN E I A4 B IERRE
HiK BB H T AN B I E AR E S B Y
FEURER 3k - 4B BRE € %H 54,371,000/ 7T
—Z— 4 :2,081,000/7T) °

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and define credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. Approximately 99% (2012: approximately 99%) of the
trade and bills receivables after allowance were neither past due
nor impaired. Management of the Group is of the opinion that the
credit quality of the trade and bills receivables balances that are
neither past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting period is
of good quality and these customers have long term relationship
with the Group.

At 31st December, 2013, included in the Group’s trade and bills
receivables balances are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$4,371,000 (2012: HK$2,081,000) which are past due at the
end of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss.
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23.EWESHEREKRERE ) 23.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (conTINUED)

RS MRS BHERBEL BEE SR
A MW 2 BRER D ATAR T

1524

FEY B 55008 2 BREE 2 F0RR T 5IR (A 1
=

1-2 years

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills receivables that
were past due at the end of the reporting period but not impaired:

2013 2012
TET TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
2,081

The carrying amount of the trade receivables is after netting off the
following impairment allowances:

2013 2012

FHEx FAET

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHEER Balance at beginning of the year 5,445
EHEE Exchange difference -
FLEWHIBER Z REEE Impairment losses recognised on receivables 26,642
NEF YR EIFRIE Amounts recovered during the year (2,678)
VEREEIR B FIEMEE ~ 508 Amounts written off as uncollectible -
29,409

N-ZEBE—=F+-_A=+—H  REERER
N B I 48 485 529,377,000 T (=&
— Z 4 : 29,409,000 7T.) &Y & Bl 2 R &
JERESFHIE  ZSEHBEEEBAT
FAUH 2 FIBH KB R EREY R Z 3
1H o NEBWARZEEHRISA TMAIKFT

on ©

NRZTBE—=F+-_A=+—H8 ' ~x&8
BRMEE A&11,392,0008 0 (—ZFE— —F :
3,951,000/ L) 2 EWRIEE B BIZEMAE
BREEERRITEIBEETIRT - AR
AEETEERHEZERERERFHEHNE
KRR & ER - o EREEREKR
HZREE  THERARERERNER
EAREEA11,392,0008 T (& — =
4 : 3,951,000/ 7T) 2 § EIRBTEE (B
£30) °

At 31st December, 2013, included in the allowance for bad and
doubtful debts are individually impaired trade receivables with an
aggregate balance of HK$29,377,000 (2012: HK$29,409,000)
which included amounts in dispute with debtors or amounts have
been placed under liquidation and in severe financial difficulties. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group’s bills receivables with
carrying amount of HK$11,392,000 (2012: HK$3,951,000) were
transferred to banks by discounting the bills receivables on a full
recourse basis. As the Group has not transferred the significant
risks and rewards relating to the bills receivables, it continues
to recognise the full carrying amount of the receivables and has
recognised the advances obtained on the transfer as secured
bank loans with carrying amount of HK$11,392,000 (2012:
HK$3,951,000) (note 30).
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24 HinEWRKIE ~ ZER 24.0THER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

106

FERIE PREPAYMENTS
2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
) £ JE 7 A K Advance to suppliers 18,275
[=ANE-&n Deposits paid 210
NG CE] Prepayments 6,026
H b pE U RIE Other receivables 7.472
FE Ui s (K Value added tax receivable 7,107
FEUWERTT R S A Bank interest income receivable 10,263
49,353

B EEEBEBREATEE

25.FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT

BECEMEE FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2013 2012
FHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
IEEEBEFERERE Financial assets designated as at
AT EERECSHEE fair value through profit or loss
P R EMA LSBT Exchange rate linked structured deposits 308,956

REE-ZTE—=F+-_A=+—HIF
B AREBEZMIBITILAARES
& K& 4% A5 AR 492,000,0007T (48
B1622,785,0008 ) (ZE——F : AR
#& 268,000,000 7T ( #8 & 7 330,864,000 %
o)) BIEEIRN F—=+ @ A 2 #F iR
ANHIFE KDL TR R ©

REBEE-_T—=F+-_A=+—HI*F
€ A& @5 A ARK538,000,0007T (8
B 681,013,000 L) (ZE——F : A
R # 305,000,000 7t ( #8 & 72 376,543,000
BIL) ) ZEBUEEFEREHHMERAR
#& 553,611,000 7T ( #8 & 7 700,774,000 %
T)(ZZE——4F : AR¥312,775,0007C
(FEE1386,142,000% 7T )) » BE4 &
E_E-—=—F+_A=+—RIFEZIE
EEBBREEATEEREZEREE
Z AT EEW A RES,857,0007T (BE
710,578,000 ) (=& ——F : AR
3,330,000 (FHE 74,111,000 7T) ) ° A
—E—=F+-"A=+—H EFEEHE
HERERAFEBEER S RMEEEGED
HEANFEF-_ZE—NE-_/AEZ T —NF+t
A(ZZ2——F: _E—=FWAZE_ZF
—=FTA)ZHEBEER -

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Group
entered into new principal protected exchange rate linked
structured deposits that were denominated in RMB with the
aggregate principal amount of RMB492,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$622,785,000) (2012: RMB268,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$330,864,000)) with banks with maturity periods ranging from
one month to twelve months.

Structured deposits with aggregate principal amount of
RMB538,000,000 (equivalent to HK$681,013,000) (2012:
RMB305,000,000 (equivalent to HK$376,543,000)) had
matured and been redeemed at RMB553,611,000 (equivalent
to HK$700,774,000) (2012: RMB312,775,000 (equivalent to
HK$386,142,000)) during the year ended 31st December, 2013
and resulted in fair value gains on financial assets designated as
at fair value through profit or loss of RMB8,357,000 (equivalent
to HK$10,578,000) (2012: RMB3,330,000 (equivalent to
HK$4,111,000)) for the year ended 31st December, 2013. The
balance of financial assets designated as at fair value through profit
or loss as at 31st December, 2013 represented structured deposits
with maturity dates ranging from February 2014 to July 2014 (2012:
April 2013 to October 2013).
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B EEEBRBRE AT EE

BRECZEMEE®)

A EREBIEE NN SRR TR
SRTCEDRITH[E R B E)MIFE) o 10 B IRHE
RE - ZEEBMFRBIEE /BB
REATEERREZSREE °

R-EB—=FEp-—FT——F+-_F=+—
B #oBEAEESBESEFEATER
BIEZECMEEZEBEFRZAFER
TR EEREBRFEEERAF (—HEA
EEVEBEZBYNAERIEMEE
B RZBIEHFT Mz EEFE  BEA
BE_T—=F+-_A=+—HER#EH=Z=
T——F+-_A=+—HUIEEFEKES
BEZERATEEREZSREEY
N EEWZARE2,742,0007T (FHER
3,471,000/ 7T ) & AR #7,254,0007C (48
18,956,000/ 7T ) °

25.FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

Interest rates of these structured deposits vary depending on the
movement of exchange rate between the United States Dollars and
Euro or the United States Dollars and the Australian Dollars. Such
structured deposits are designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition.

The fair values of structured deposits classified as financial
assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss as at
31st December, 2013 and 2012 have been arrived at the basis
on the valuation carried out at that date by Norton Appraisals
Limited, a firm of independent and qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group, and resulted in fair value gains on
financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss of
RMB2,742,000 (equivalent to HK$3,471,000) and RMB7,254,000
(equivalent to HK$8,956,000) for the years ended 31st December,
2018 and 31st December, 2012.

HRARBEER 26.0THER PRINCIPAL PROTECTED DEPOSITS
2013 2012
FET FiBT
HK$’000 HK$'000

HRARBEFR Other principal protected deposits

RS IETR Interest rate linked structured deposits 216,613
HMER Other deposit -
216,613
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26. H R A B ER (2

108

REEZ-_ZET—=%+-_HA=+—H
WFE - AEBEHE—RERTIMNA
AREANE  AEeBBBAARE
237,000,0007T (#87& 7300,000,000/%8
TI(ZZ——4%F : AR¥170,000,000
7t (88 12 209,877,0005# 7)) » B HA
HENFE—Z+=@A8  FENFER
410%=E4.80% ( —ZF——F : 4.90%
:&9w02%$ﬁﬂfmﬁ ST

e

REBEZE_ZT—=F+-"A=+—H81t
FE - AeE%EAARK237,000,000
5T (48 & 7 300,000,000 1) ( = &
——F : AR ®¥150,000,000 5t (48
B 1 185,185,000/8 70 ) ) Z &£ 1B T
REEHRER R_TE—=F+=
B=+—HZHE&#RBIHAN T =&
fmimﬂz_f EEAHLQ

—E=FRPAERE—=
itmz ST o

ZEBBETFRZHEEE LZRTT

BIRIZERAA BB TZE) © X T
BT SRR D 28 R B SR e WA I
REEHRATIRR o

fisl _E 73 SR 1T A [R] 3 37 BRI 3R B2 EL A7) 20
ﬁuaﬁmmiﬂiT%?9Lwﬁﬁ

$$lﬁ%iﬁﬁ4m%z¢ﬂ
Tu@ﬁﬁﬂgkiﬁ@ﬁtﬁ
_¢+ A=+— E*U%Z#%
HFER - IRFEREEER YT AE
YAEE - AT - R E X FERR MRS
giM#%@%z NEEEHRT R
LO

REZE_FT—=F+-"A=+—H81t
FE > ANEBHEZEIBITIILERAR
WAANRESE A BEAEARE
110,000,000 7T ( 42 & 4 139,241,000
BIT) 2 HithEs o BHAEEAN T —

+ @R - FENTF4.50%%F5.25% °
ZEFREHEEER L EWFRIE K
RS ARTIER o

REBEE—ZT—=F+=-_A=+—81It
FE - KNe %A A RE30,000,000
iﬂﬁ%%wgmw&%ﬂZﬁ@ﬁ
HREHEKRER - R T —=F+—
H +—0B - EfthFRz&E%IEEIH
E—T EE/\HZ*IET_%’\"

26.0THER PRINCIPAL PROTECTED DEPOSITS
(CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Group
entered into principal protected interest rate linked structured
deposits that were denominated in RMB with the aggregate
principal amount of RMB237,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$300,000,000) (2012: RMB170,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$209,877,000)) with a bank with maturity periods ranging
from one month to twelve months and carried interest ranged
from 4.10% to 4.80% (2012: 4.90% to 5.95%) per annum.

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, structured
deposits with aggregate principal amount of RMB237,000,000
(equivalent to HK$300,000,000) (2012: RMB150,000,000
(equivalent to HK$185,185,000)) had matured and been
redeemed. The balance as at 31st December, 2013
represented structured deposits with maturity dates ranging
from April 2014 to June 2014 (2012: April 2013 to July 2013).

Interest rates of these structured deposits vary depending on
the movement of the SHIBOR. Such structured deposits are
classified as loans and receivables and stated at amortised
cost.

The Group has options for early redemption of these
outstanding structured deposits as at 31st December, 2013
at par plus the interest at interest rate of 4.20% per annum
when SHIBOR increases or decreases by at least 500 basis
points comparing with SHIBOR at initial recognition date. The
early redemption options are not closely related to the host
contracts. However, the fair values of such options at initial
recognition and the end of the reporting period are negligible.

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Group
entered into other deposits that were principal protected and
denominated in RMB with the aggregate principal amount
of RMB110,000,000 (equivalent to HK$139,241,000) with
banks with maturity periods ranging from one month to twelve
months and carried interest ranged from 4.50% to 5.25% per
annum. Such deposits are classified as loans and receivables
and stated at amortised cost.

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, other deposits
with aggregate principal amount of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$37,975,000) had matured and been redeemed.
The balance of other deposit as at 31st December, 2013
represented a deposit with maturity date in June 2014.

Bt AR AR AR ALLIED CEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED



RE W RRKE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BE=—ZT—=Ft+-A=1t—HLEE)
(for the year ended 31st December, 2013)

27. EHIER

R-ZE—=F+-"A=+—8  ~&£EF
B EHEREREANEBEAE 2 RETF
FIEA1.49% (ZFE——4F : 3.33%):T 8~
RITEESR ©

28.BENEZREARENRE

RBERR - AEBE RN E 508 R EN
SEREBEZRZAMEI2RRATWT

27.TIME DEPOSITS

Time deposits held by the Group comprised bank balances held by
the Group and carried fixed interest rate which was 1.49% (2012:
3.33%) per annum at 31st December, 2013.

28.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables, presented
based on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:
2013 2012
FHET FiBT
HK$’000 HK$'000
0%90H 0 to 90 days 62,076
91%180H 91 to 180 days 68,941
181£365H 181 to 365 days 3,330
EHBiE1F Over 1 year 4,123
138,470
20 HMENREREWIZS 29.0THER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS
RECEIVED
2013 2012
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEME  BEX Payables for acquisition of property,

BN EE plant and equipment 12,789
WERR F#R Receipt in advance from customers 9,939
Hib R FiTE Other tax payables 3,933
E A ERIFRIE Other payables 230
H R %%’ﬁﬁ Other accrued operating expenses 4,378
Bduze Deposits received 110

31,379
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30.8R1TEE 30.BANK BORROWINGS
2013 2012
FHET BT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
RITER Bank loans ' 101,996
HIEH Secured
it Unsecured

HESRITERZZHABRAT

101,996

The maturity profile of the above bank loans is as follows:

2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
R—FR Within one year 28,741 59,878
—FLA LR More than one year but not

BB F exceeding two years 65,750 42,118
94,491 101,996

B AR —FREERRETA Less: Amounts repayable within one year and
@JE B2 RIR shown under current liabilities (28,741) (59,878)
— 1R FIH 2 SRR Amounts due after one year 65,750 42,118

R-ZE—=F+-_A=+—8 " FTER
BIED I RENE 2 E R SR R
2 TS IE11,392,000/8 T ( —Z B ——4F ¢
3,951,000/&7T) °

R-ZE—=F+-A=+—H " RITEX
71,200,000/ T ( —Z&F— 4 : 73,354,000
BIL) OB TTEHE(WIEE S EER 2
e EH) -

AEEQERSRTEFMERZEEFS
ENER e

Included in bank loans were proceeds from discounted
bills receivables with full recourse of HK$11,392,000 (2012:
HK$3,951,000) at 31st December, 2013.

Bank loans of HK$71,200,000 (2012: HK$73,354,000) were
denominated in HK$ at 31st December, 2013, the currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entities.

Details of the assets of the Group pledged to secure bank loans are
set out in note 39.
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30.8R1TEEE (%) 30.BANK BORROWINGS (conTINUED)
AEENTELEMTERITEENRRIT The exposures of the Group’s fixed-rate and variable-rate bank
borrowings are as follows:
2013 2012
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
EEMEE: Fixed-rate borrowings:
BR—FERNEEZIRITER Bank loans repayable within one year 3,951
EEEE Variable-rate borrowings:
BR—FERNEEZIRITER Bank loans repayable within one year 55,927
AR —FLA BT EA Bank loans repayable in more than
MEEEZRITER one year but not more than two years 42,118
98,045
101,996
IS EE B E R TE A R 2 % BRI TIE K The variable-rate bank borrowings carry interest rate, which are
U repriced periodically, as follows:
2013 2012
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
EBRITRZEFREN2.3% Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus 2.3% 29,500
BEARRITRIZES 2 12.85% Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus 2.85% 43,854
R ARIRTT— FHIELER X 1-year People’s Bank of China benchmark
FLA105% interest rate multiplied by 105% 24,691
98,045
REBZE-_E—=+-A=+—HItE The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
E - AEBRITEENERAE(JEER] contracted interest rates) of the Group’s bank borrowings during
WF MR SEE LT the year ended 31st December, 2013 are as follows:
2013 2012
TER FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEBAE Effective interest rate:
EERITIEE Fixed-rate bank borrowings (O L7 5.04% - 7.20%
FERTIEE Variable-rate bank borrowings PR (LRI 2.54% - 7.87%
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31

32

N &N

BREE.OIE T L&Ak

EE

N_F—_F—H—H"
“TZHFTZA=+-BR
—E-—=F+-A=+—H

BITRESHRT

F:;—:i B—H

RIE AR
@a'%%;fnzw

ZECHtZAZTHR
—E=F+t-A=1+—H

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

Authorised:
At 1st January, 2012,
31st December, 2012 and
31st December, 2013

Issued and fully paid:
At 1st January, 2012
Issue of shares pursuant to
public offering and placing

At 31st December, 2012 and

31.SHARE CAPITAL
REE
Number of BE
shares Value
FHL
HK$'000
20,000,000,000 200,000
495,000,000 4,950
165,000,000 1,650
660,000,000 6,600

31st December, 2013

JEREETE

ARmz BRES ([ AR _F
——FMA-+N\BHES - N5t 5HE
B2uE AAREEELER &ﬁ$%l
SUABELGBEAEE A B ZES -

Ko OB 4 K #8. 5A Q$EEWE%%§ZAﬁ
BR -BEFQNRNESSL2ENGEALE
RERRE - RFFH - HEAKE X5
FHERERSRRE TIFER - 1T
AR EMAERERAREAKEZER
ANERZEFMERAL - BIAREEEMR
RERRIZEES  SHBE - K12 - BN
FRK(BEAEEERKE DR ZE@H
THRIFMITES) - RTARBEARARND
IR - AFFEIE T ——F—AFTN
BEETFRER YR T —F—
HA+tBEm -

32.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (“Scheme”) was
adopted on 28th April, 2011 for the purpose of providing incentives
to participants to contribute to the Group and to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract and retain
human resources that are valuable to the Group. The Board
may grant an option to subscribe for the shares in the Company
to any individual being an employee, officer, agent, consultant
or representative of any members of the Group (including any
executive or non-executive director of any member of the Group)
who, as the Board may determine in its absolute discretion, has
made valuable contribution to the business of the Group based
on his/her performance, years of service, or is regarded to be a
valuable human resource of the Group based on his/her working
experience, knowledge in the industry and other relevant factors.
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on 18th January, 2012 and will expire on 17th
January, 2022.
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32.[BIRHESTEI ) 32.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (conTiNUED)

FETTEEANGT B R AR RHE ] E A B A 5
BT ARBITRZAE HARITERK
B(TBREDRUR T BhAE) M
BT AR BERE - TMEEBA
NENEERITAR AR Z230% ° UL
RITERIEA B R AR R TS
B ES TROZMEBRE(TEE
BB AE) T Al e BT 2 AR A B An
BB TEBBARFR BT TR
Erz B(TEH8IRAER S ) St/ & #rat
ERERSIZBARRDETRNAE
10% °

REZZEFHR L B8+ —EAREA -
HATHRERTESEE 7 BREERRE
AR\ Z M EAERETSIMER T R
BIRTZSEEZMEBRE(REDT
& SEEHEREARTTE 2 BRE) M %
TR FREITZBRMNAAR - TEBBRE
&R AHARR R BTN AR Z1% °
NR2EERE— SR BB %R 2 B
- AGRRIETAMER - Mz28EE
NEMBATARERSR -

BIBEARFTERES - AQRTHRAR S E
TRRFMES A2 I ABEALTERET
AIBERSHE - MW EEB N IERITE S (T RIE
B AERBRANNBYIERITES ) HE - It
G fKm E B R S IB FEMITE B
EZ2HZIMBMEALREBEREERRN
T+ — 1@ A EpR A2 31T M 317 2 B%
DIREE BITIM 20.1% 8k 218 (B 15 A%
PRAEHERERHZ KHEE)BE
5,000,000/ 7T © AIZBEHBRERRBER RS /E
B -

BETEREZEOLAREL B HET
— T N\BRERR - FEREARARE
MR TRBERZENRNTARRZEHE
B1.008TT - BEEZTERAKHESS
RTE - HERERAIER T NS BB LB
RERHREETTF -

The limit on the total number of the Company’s shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company (excluding lapsed and cancelled options)
must not exceed 30% of the total number of the Company’s
shares in issue from time to time. In addition, the total number of
the Company’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme, together with all options
to be granted under any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (excluding lapsed options), must not represent more than
10% of the total number of the Company’s shares in issue as at the
date of commencement of the listing of shares of the Company on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (“Scheme Mandate Limit”)
or as at the date of approval of the refreshed Scheme Mandate
Limit.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant, together with all options
granted and to be granted to him/her under any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company within the 12-month period immediately
preceding the proposed date of grant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of the Company’s shares in issue as at the proposed date
of grant. Any further grant of options to a participant in excess of
the 1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval of the
Company with such participant and his/her associates abstaining
from voting.

Any option to be granted under the Scheme to a Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of
their respective associates must be approved by Independent
Non-Executive Directors (excluding Independent Non-Executive
Director who is the grantee). In addition, any option to be granted
to a substantial shareholder of the Company or an Independent
Non-Executive Director or any of their respective associates which
will result in the shares issued and to be issued in excess of 0.1%
of the issued shares or with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000 within any 12-month period is subject to approval
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

An offer for grant of options must be accepted within 28 days from
the date of grant. The amount payable by each grantee of options
to the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of options
is HK$1.00. The exercisable period will be determined by the Board
and in any event must not be more than 10 years from the date of
the grant of the option.
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32.[BIRHESTEI ) 32.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (conTINUED)

RARGT &R T BRI TE R AN QB i (D
ZRBETSERUAT=F2RS% : (@
RUBREE B (BASEER)BRME
BMEXRMIINROKTE )R BEEE
th B B B A B X AR P e A 3R
BRI ETEZ Y Re)RMHmE
1A -

B ERANANET B LAZKE - BEE (1 HE AR AR B
AEFEIMIT L - B IR EBRER =
T—=FR_FT——F+_A=1+—HMH
RITHE o

33. R 17 m B R i

A [ B O A SR B AR 1 TR i
2 S BIARRBH HIRGA RRBBES
251 -

RZE—=k=_FT——F+-_A=+—H
HbFEESE LS EBRILR B
HBEL10423000 B TR EC¥ERAS
4,702,000/ 7T ° EBEES JIAEL NG
MEEED - ECEEBRR  MEEST
FRERmRERE R T AREBAEX -
TCEARESTARERRE - ELE
JRA] ARG ANE AN o

T FR B AR SZ A B B 2 B 4R BB O AU B H
BI/ZAMGH T AN E - WARRTZE
B A BPTELE RRERINEEE R

The subscription price for the Company’s shares on the exercise
of options under the Scheme shall be at least the highest of: (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value
of the share.

No options have been granted under the Scheme since its
adoption and accordingly there were no options outstanding at
31st December, 2013 and 2012.

33.SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s share premium and reserves and the
movement therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserves as at 31st December, 2013 and 2012 comprise
reserve fund of HK$10,423,000 and enterprise expansion fund of
HK$4,702,000 of Shanghai SAC and Shandong SAC. The reserve
fund is to be used to expand the enterprise’s working capital.
When the enterprise suffers losses, the reserve fund may be used
to make up unrecovered losses under special circumstances. The
enterprise expansion fund is to be used for business expansion
and, if approved, can also be used to increase capital.

The remittance of retained profits of the subsidiaries established
in the PRC outside the PRC is subject to approval of the local
authorities and the availability of foreign currencies generated and
retained by these subsidiaries.
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34 R FER

RBEMRERAERE T BEFEA » 5L
s = RER ZREHRARGE(EE) LA
TNRIEERE

R-T——% At 1st January,
—A—H 2012

AEER (Credit) charge to consolidated
FABEN statement of profit or loss and
Hit2EWERT  other comprehensive income
(FTA) k& for the year

R-F——F At 31st December,
+=A=t+—-A 2012

XA Exchange differences

AEER Charge (credit) to consolidated
BEEBREN statement of profit or loss and
Hih2EWERT  other comprehensive income
MRGIA) for the year

RWZZ—=F At 31st December,

+-A=+—H 2013

R-_ZE—=F+-_A=+—H K&EH
B R824,242,00008 T (Z 2 — £ :
21,780,000 T ) Z bt A B AL EES 8 7]
AR RAE - ARERFE RS2
LAMEET AW EEREERIBEE - &
BRI IEE 1R ] ER HAEEE o

R =FRk_F——F+-_A=+—
H SREMZECEHBARBNIEETE
BEZFEEAFEEREZSREERR
ZAREIR N FEEWDS REMRAR &
EFERETFBMA 2 R =R -

34.DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period and during the current and prior
years, deferred tax liabilities (assets) were recognised in respect of
the temporary differences attributable to the following:

ADK
Bz ENH
MEBBRE RIEEE  Withholding
Accelerated Allowance taxon
tax  fordoubtful  undistributed Hith @5t
depreciation debts earnings Others Total
TAT THAT THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
30,854 6,178) 8,134 2,354 35,164
- (5,991) (743) 1,439 (5,295)
30,854 (12,169) 7,391 3,793 29,869
781 (308) 187 95 755
- 194 498 (710) (18)
31,635 (12,283) 8,076 3,178 30,606

The Group had estimated unused tax losses of HK$24,242,000
(2012: HK$21,780,000) at 31st December, 2013, which were
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

The deferred tax liabilities included in others as at 31st December,
2013 and 2012 represented the temporary differences on the
unrealised fair value gain recognised on financial assets designated
as at fair value through profit or loss and accrued interest income
on other principal protected structured deposits.

—Z=— =443 ANNUAL REPORT2013 115



RE W RRKE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BE-Z—=F+"A=+—HILFE)
(for the year ended 31st December, 2013)

BERFRERS
RBE_F—=6F+_A=+—HIF

B - REE AR EBARTERNMEE
R EWERE /14,810,000 T(ZF
—%F : 9,538,000/ 7T) °

36. 3R @ F 5T &

AEBZHEE I NEMBTEFZBER
EHERAENTEIZKE - NEBIBMRZ
EFRNBANFEBRETIHENAZETA
DHAELRHFE - REBEERNEHRES - K
SEPZFRABHFEIRFE BT
AEERRERRK -

AREBETFRIBHIEATE S ([RES

tEl]) - AR REREEAZNRE
T8 - FHEIMBEEREARENEED

B FERITIAEENES - EER
REB 2 BT IREE T A BB AR5S%
EH - BoaslE LR - BREREZEAER
%tré‘t\i_i;i@%‘]’ﬁtﬁﬁ » REEEEL I
5% o

FREENEE ZRIKEFEEIHERS R
MR 11 K213 o

37. R EHERIE

AEBMERPE 2 E=7F %5 - A
BUHERNIOREERNE - RYI—+F - H
fEEAYEZ CEROBRHLEERRE
RMEETE -

35.MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, bills receivables with
recourse offset against corresponding bank loans upon maturity
was HK$14,810,000 (2012: HK$9,538,000).

36.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The PRC employees of the Group are members of state-managed
retirement benefits schemes operated by the local government. The
Group is required to contribute certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”). All qualifying employees in Hong Kong are
required to join the MPF Scheme. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. Both employees’ and the Group’s contributions are
calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly relevant income
with the mandatory cap, and the Group will make 5% top-up
contribution if an employee’s monthly basic salary exceeds the
mandatory cap.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions of the Directors and
staff for the year end are stated in notes 11 and 13 respectively.

37.0PERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group entered into an arrangement with a third party in the
PRC to lease rented premises as the production facilities for
manufacture of cement with a term of twenty years. Other operating
leases for rented premises were negotiated for terms from two to

ten years.
2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
KRBTSR NERARTEZ Minimum lease payments under operating
SN =5 leases recognised as expenses 381
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7. X&EHERE 2 37.0PERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
REIEER - NEERE 2B R EAM At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
PAMESE 2 MENRE MR EEEHER future minimum lease payments under the above arrangement and
EIEZ BESEEEFIEZHHBERNT other non-cancellable operating leases for premises and plant and

equipment which fall due as follows:

2013 2012
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERE—F Not later than one year 1,480
—FLA B Later than one year and not later than
TEARF five years 4,033
A Later than five years 3,374
8,887
38. & AR E 38.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
REEBUATERALE : The Group had the following capital commitments:
2013 2012
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
SEESEE NN Capital commitments contracted for but
RAEPERE not provided in the consolidated financial
B2 BRI statements:
—TABRAKF—EEL AT — capital contribution to a joint venture 506,329 493,827
—BEWE  BE — acquisition of property,
& plant and equipment 2,249 1,129
508,578 494,956
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38.BEAREIWE =) 38.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

118

HIMARBRN —_E——F_A+HHA
o R-—E——E-RH+=H L5 H®
HELE ESEEME(SE)RRAR ([
EEME DA BER 2RI AsEBER |
G ([ 1EHZE ) RAENERIZEE
ARIRENHBZEITEEBRABZE]D) -
RIBEB@HE 2GR RIGEHRIEE QT
([BERR]) - REBEAEHZ  LEERE
MRS FHBMRESRIREHESER 2
ERABRHXE=EARN LA ERLH
HZIEREN BB AR UREREEH
BEAEE  FABRAT—RMEL QR ZE
EIEA B QR FEMARA 2 50% [0 AR
400,000,000 7t (8 & M #7506,329,000 %
TT( =T — 4 : 493,827,000/ 7)) 18 M
REBIRME - KBFFORIENR AR R B
PE_ZE——F-_A+RANK-_T——F
Z A+ RBZRAHMEBHA o

FEFBMER_E——FE A=+ N\B
VZEBEERSE AEEETRME M
22 MR (E A AR ¥ 380,000,000t (48
N #7481,013,000 BT ( —ZF— —4F :
469,136,000 7)) c R—_ZT—=F+ =
A=1+—H LB IBMEXN=HEEE
HEETERBEZSHEHENREAAR
68,270,000 T (ZE——F : ARK
68,270,0007T ) (FHE F #786,418,000 /& 7T
ZFE— T4 :84,284,000/87T)) - =18
BEWZE NEBE REMEREERR
RAREEEER @ ZEBRARARTETE
PZEREREEBEER - REERT]
Mg B8 EEERRIEEE R BEERE R
A AKAERE RN S EaE i
BREBEEREMBEZEE KA
BRESEEMRE N 2ENREETE
BRA - HZAEPBEEREOER -
AARABRNEYHE S A ERZEE
B UHAERASERRFEMEARLLF 2
HE - XGHBHNARRBHS B A
TR —HF+A=ZBER-E——F+—A
+HHEZAMRBEA

As announced by the Company on 15th February, 2012,
Shanghai SAC entered into the (BN R [AREFER | & 1EH
%) (Bailonggang Project Construction Cooperation Agreement)
(“Cooperation Agreement”) and the (AR R A B AR (R #
%) (Principle Agreement for the Establishment of the Joint Venture
Company) (“JV Principle Agreement”) with =325k} ()
42 7] (Shanghai Building Material (Group) General Company)
(“Shanghai Building Material”), a state-owned enterprise, for the
purpose of setting up a joint venture company (“JV Company”)
pursuant to the terms and conditions therein on 13th February,
2012. Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, Shanghai Building
Material and Shanghai SAC agreed to establish the JV Company
to operate and manage the Bailonggang Project under the terms
of the JV Principle Agreement within three months after the
relevant government approvals for the Bailonggang Project being
obtained. The commitment on capital contribution to a joint venture
represents the 50% share of registered capital of the JV Company
by the Group amounting to RMB400,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$506,329,000 (2012: HK$493,827,000)). Details
of the transaction were set out in the announcement and circular
of the Company dated 15th February, 2012 and 16th March, 2012
respectively.

On 28th September, 2012, Shanghai SAC entered into
three purchase agreements for the purchases of certain
equipment and machineries at the aggregate consideration of
RMB380,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$481,013,000
(2012: HK$469,136,000)). As at 31st December, 2013, Shanghai
SAC has settled the respective first payments of the total
consideration in an aggregate amount of RMB68,270,000 (2012:
RMB68,270,000) (equivalent to approximately HK$86,418,000
(2012: HK$84,284,000)) under the three purchase agreements. The
equipment and machineries under the three purchase agreements
were purchased for future use in the Bailonggang Project and the
Group and the Company does not intend to retain such equipment
and machineries for their own use. After the JV Company is
established, Shanghai SAC may transfer, by way of disposal or
otherwise, the equipment and machineries purchased at cost or
novate the rights and obligations of the purchase agreements at
cost to the JV Company in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations, or subject to the relevant PRC rules and
regulations, may transfer such equipment and machineries at
cost by way of contribution in kind to satisfy its proportion of the
registered capital of the JV Company. Details of the transaction
were set out in the announcement and circular of the Company
dated 3rd October, 2012 and 15th November, 2012 respectively.
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38.BEAREIWE =) 38.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (cONTINUED)

39.

HR-ZHEERZB THEE 2 RiE R
SEEBREARARBER AEERARE
BEBZEAE(BE-HEEBERHHAT
2 EYE) &5 A A R ¥ 400,000,000t (18
& N 49506,329,000/8 T (ZFE — —F
493,827,000/7T)) *+ MEREARE T —
AL RR]ZHEKE -

AEEEA

RFEHR AEEBERBEARA
95,629,000/ 7T( —F— —4 : 92,149,000
BIL) 2B TEFREEY UAKRKE K ik
2 . BRE(E A6,647,000 T (28 —=
% : 6,645,000/ 7T ) 2 T fF F#E 2 AT
AEIE - BRME1E A15,696,0005 71 ( =
T— 4 : 3,951,000/870) 2B TREIKE
¥ - BRE{E A74,908,0008 T (= F—=
4 : 38,457,000 70 ) & T H MR AR
FERARK A BT FFENT0.00%E
3.08%(—F— % : 3.08%%3.33%)
SEHASR 1T 1R 212,446,000 T (=& — —
F 179,398,000/ 7L)  EEARTALE
B2 R1TE 82,592,000 T (—E—=
F 1 77,305,000/ 7T ) M 1A 4 e pE A AL B
1+ Z 4% 105,756,000/ T (Z T — —4F
101,411,00078 70 ) fE A AU 52 BRSRTTRA & 2
IR o

Since the equipment and machineries under the three purchase
agreements were purchased for future use in the Bailonggang
Project, the total commitment of the Group to the Bailonggang
Project, including the commitment under the three purchase
agreements, would be limited to RMB400,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$506,329,000 (2012: HK$493,827,000)) being
the commitment on capital contribution to a joint venture.

39.PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s buildings
and structures and plant and machinery with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$95,629,000 (2012: HK$92,149,000), prepaid
lease payments on land use rights with carrying amount of
HK$6,647,000 (2012: HK$6,645,000), certain bills receivables
with carrying amount of HK$15,696,000 (2012: HK$3,951,000),
certain other principal protected deposits with carrying value of
HK$74,908,000 (2012: HK$38,457,000) together with short-term
bank deposits, carrying fixed interest rate ranging from 0.00% to
3.08% (2012: 3.08% to 3.33%) per annum, of HK$12,446,000
(2012: HK$79,398,000) were pledged to secure bank loans to the
extent of HK$82,592,000 (2012: HK$77,305,000) granted to the
Group and short-term bank facilities in respect of the issuance of
bills payable to suppliers amounting to HK$105,756,000 (2012:
HK$101,411,000).
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40.FBE H R 5 R LR

REE_ZE—=Fk_ZT——-F+_HA
=t HLEFE TEEERBEBIZZS

REEgRuT

(a) RFZBE

BAthE(FB)EMR AT Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited

((BEEDRE

MY R (TR E

BRAT(HRE DR

HIB A RERN) K

HERZERDQF

He  MEEER
=REM

THRER

EEIRF &R ()

HBERANBATR
EfRRE R

RAEZERAT
TRER

EATzBREERATZ A partnership of which a

FHTES
BEBAH
aRiEE
FREREXEM

FEEMBAFZ
—BIFERBR
BEEBEX N

)
=
it

BRARIBRAR N 5] BB S M 2 R ARHE
B2 BRT S (TR 7 I B IR AR 7%
DEBHHE TR EE RS E B
SN EMEIEE T R B W BN EE
BERIHMARARESR ETRA
PREZ AT HRBEMERS °

40.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES

(@) Summary of transactions

2013
FiteE FHET
Notes HK$°000

(“APL”) and its subsidiaries

(other than Sun Hung Kai & Co.

Limited (“SHK”) and

its subsidiaries) and

its ultimate holding company (i)

Rent, property management and
air-conditioning fees

Administrative expenses

Management service fee (remark)

SHK and its subsidiaries (i)
Insurance paid

The ultimate holding company
Administrative expenses

non-executive director of
the ultimate holding company of
the Company is a partner
Legal and professional fees

A non-controlling shareholder of

the Group’s subsidiary
Management fee expense

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

120 A /KRERAR~AT ALLIED CEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

During the year ended 31st December, 2013 and 2012, the Group
had transactions and balances with related parties as follows:

2012
TAT
HK$'000

370
120
310

242

992

55

Remark: Apart from the management service fee charged pursuant to
the sharing of administrative services and management services
agreement entered into by the Company with the ultimate
holding company of APL, none of the above related party
transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as
defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
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40.BAME T R 5 R A& ER (42 40.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (conTINUED)
2013 2012
FExT FETT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Fre M E b 5E HItE R Salaries and other short-term benefits 6,342
BRIKEFER Post-employment costs 244
6,586

AEEETIZEREABH -—REALN
RAEREGER I ARAIHZABZEE
B ARSI E - AR RAEERME
EERY - WAAKERZZASREAM
WHAEE 2 T EZEREABFIRHART
WRER @ ZBRCBRENNZEEHD
P EE 2 BEEARIG B AT -

T EBREERNIZEEEBABRSEAR
EEEBRMEAE YA okEE bt
BEEEAE - 249 i & 58838,0007% 7T
—F— 4 189,000/ T) O BIEE it
FTEEEEABMENRA -

Certain key management personnel of the Group received
remuneration from a company, or a wholly-owned subsidiary of
such company, which had significant beneficial interests in the
Company. Such company provided management services to the
Group and charged the Group a fee, which has been included in
management service fee as disclosed in part (a) of this note, for
services provided by those personnel as well as others who were
not key management personnel of the Group.

The above-mentioned management service fee is calculated by
reference to the time devoted by the management personnel on
the affairs of the Group and can be apportioned to the above key
management personnel. The total of such apportioned amounts,
which has been included in the key management personnel
compensation above, is HK$838,000 (2012: HK$189,000).
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40.FB AR Z RiEeR#)

122

40.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES conTinUED)

(c) HEERrAELE (c) Summary of balances
2013 2012
BaE FET FAET
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000

RBAEE Current liabilities
fEAREEfBARZ  Dividends payable to non-controlling

FEFERRAR R 2 shareholders of the Group’s

xS subsidiaries (ii) 1,150
RALEBWEB AR Z—% Amounts due to a non-controlling

AR AR ER 2 FRIE shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary (ii) 720
R E b BRRE 5 5R IR Amounts due to other related parties 1,870
RELSHEREMNB AT  Amounts due to APL and its subsidiaries

RIB CGRTR & R LT & (other than SHK and its subsidiaries)

NEIGIN (BFEREM  (included in other payables and

ENFIEREKIES) deposits received) (ii) 310
RN Z &EPEIRAE] Amount due to a partnership of which a

ZIEHMITEEAAE A non-executive director of the ultimate

NAEBCERE(BHE holding company of the Company is a

RE A R FRIE partner (included in other payables and

EiiES) deposits received) (i) 326
T Notes:

(i

(TPAN
Cl=)

HAMEARNARRKIZER AR ZHEE 0}
BEAVEZFERR R=-ZT—=F
+-A=+—BAER-_ZT——%+_-A

=+—H " FREABEHWEZHBR

Ho

REHRAEER  REREANREREEE - (i)

KEAER AR AR ALLIED CEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

APL is a substantial shareholder with significant influence over the
ultimate holding company of the Company. SHK is a subsidiary of APL
as at 31st December, 2013 and 31st December, 2012.

The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable
on demand.
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RRBAEMBRARANR _E—=FK_F
——F+ - RA=t+—BZ#HBEREEM

HRRAIE42 -

statements.

M. A RQE] 2 EE R 41.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY
2013 2012
FHBT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FREBEE Non-current assets
Yz - B MR Property, plant and equipment 25 33
KRB ARIZKRE Investments in subsidiaries 421,736 421,736
B A RIRIK Amounts due from subsidiaries 332,871 328,379
754,632 750,148
REEE Current assets
o 1th i W Rk TE N FE A~ s Other receivables and prepayments 315 219
L B)EENEIDE A Amounts due from subsidiaries 14,000 14,000
RITHEBRIRE Bank balances and cash 1,580 1,387
15,895 15,606
REAE Current liabilities
FEETER Accrued expenses 472 1,448
REEETHE Net current assets 15,423 14,158
BEERARBARG Total assets less current liabilities 770,055 764,306
BAREHE Capital and reserves
R AR Share capital 6,600 6,600
RAm m (B Nt (P sE) Share premium and reserves (note) 763,455 757,706
TETSMEE Total equity 770,055 764,306

Particulars of all subsidiaries of the Company at 31st December,
2013 and 2012 are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
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4. KN 2EER &) 41.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Pz Note:
B BRERREE Share premium and reserves
BRA7 R E REBER wEg
Share premium Retained profits Total
FAT FAT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-_ZE——%—A—H At 1st January, 2012 575,063 21,644 596,707
BEBEAFHBEER Issue of shares pursuant to
&S E1T 2 R 1D public offering and placing 163,350 - 163,350
NHEEER Expenses incurred in connection with
BREFRID 2 issue of new shares pursuant to
HEER public offering and placing (7,361) = (7,361)
AR TAERE 2T Profit for the year of the Company - 18,210 18,210
& 25 B Dividend recognised as distribution - (13,200) (13,200)
N-E——F+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2012 731,052 26,654 757,706
RARRERERA Profit for the year of the Company - 18,949 18,949
f% 85 e Dividend recognised as distribution - (13,200) (13,200)
R-ZE—=F+_-_A=+—H At 31st December, 2013 731,052 32,408 763,455
RZF—=F+=ZA=+—8 ' AAFAIHIKT The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders of the
AN B IR 2 R A R 9 4 (B 731,052,000 7T Company as at 31st December, 2013 represented the share premium of
REB A A1,743,0008 T (ZFE— 4 : RIHHE HK$731,052,000 and retained profits of HK$11,743,000 (2012: share premium
731,052,000/ 7T IR AR B 42 126,654,000/ 7T ) © of HK$731,052,000 and retained profits of HK$26,654,000).
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42.f B AR E R 42.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

KABFBEMBRARR-_TE— = _F

Particulars of all subsidiaries of the Company as at 31st December,
2013 and 2012 are as follows:

——ft=A=t—BZERMT :

ERTRAR
EERRE AREEEZ
Ha EHREMER BRREER
o ubira Paid up issued Effective
Place of Fgi ordinary share equity interest
INGES ] incorporation/ Place of capital/paid up attributable to FEX£7%
Name of company registration operations registered capital the Group Principal activities
%
All-cement Limited KBRS BE 1%L 100 REBRRATRES
British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong USS$1 Investment holding and
cement business
All-Shanghai Inc. RERAES B 15,376,500% 7T 83.33 RERMREKERH
British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong US$15,376,500 Investment holding and
cement business
EImARAA RERLHS 9 I 100 REER
Fortunate Gold Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong USS$1 Investment holding
SAC Intellectual Properties RBEIHES &R 1% 100 REER
Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong USS$1 Investment holding
WREE ERIORAERAA R ARAAE A RAAME 14,360,0003 7T 100 42 REEKERFAE
Shandong Allied Wangchao People’s Republic of  People’s Republic of US$14,360,000 Manufacture and sales of
Cement Limited China China cement and clinker
R EBKRERARAR hEE ARANE HE AR AR 1,000,000 7T 100 HEREEEH
Shandong Shanghai People’s Republic of - People’s Republic of US$1,000,000 Manufacture and sales of
Allied Cement Co., Ltd. China China slag
HEBAKEERAA i ARAAE hEE ARAME 24,000,000 7T 50" BEKERAH
Shanghai Allied Cement People’s Republic of  People’s Republic of US$24,000,000 Trading of cement and
Co., Ltd. China China clinker
TROREBERARA BE B 10,000,000/ 7T 100 REMER
Shanghai Allied Cement Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 Investment holding
Holdings Limited
SFEERAR KBRS BE E 100 RERMK
Splendid Link Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong US$1 Investment holding
RAER - [MBRRBMERITEMERE None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
7 o of the year.
MEE - Remark:

Y RRRIRARBRED IR RIEHI83.33%%E
ff

HOHBAR -

This company is held and controlled by a 83.33%-owned subsidiary of the

Company.
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A3. BB ERFIERERZ 43.DETAILS OF NON WHOLLY-OWNED
FEEMBEA R ZFE SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TRBEATRKAFEEE RIFIERER ZIE The table below shows details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries of
2ENB AR ZFHE : the Company that have material non-controlling interests:
FERERFEZ
HEEEER IR

Proportion of

ownership interest S EZ FIERER 2B EiH R

and voting rights held Profit allocated to Accumulated
UNGIES by non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of company interests interests interests
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
FHET THET FHET THETT
% % HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000

FEEBaIORERAR

Shanghai Allied Cement Co., Ltd

BRI BB TR 2 IEERHIE A A

Individually immaterial subsidiary with
non-controlling interests

413,061

6,370

419,431

ERARNRHABERERERZ ZMBA Summarised financial information in respect of the Company’s
RAIZMBERBESHINNAT - TXHBE subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out
HZEE REBNEERINEE - below. The summaries financial information below presented
amounts before intra-group eliminations.

EBEEIRERAT Shanghai Allied Cement Co., Ltd
2013 2012
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’'000

mENEE Current assets 944,909 930,140
EREEE Non-current assets 170,231 162,821
BB E Current liabilities (234,181) (238,606)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (28,107) (28,266)
PN Sy e Equity attributable to owners of the Company 426,409 413,028

JEIE R i e Non-controlling interests 426,443 413,061
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43.DETAILS OF NON WHOLLY-OWNED
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (conTiNUED)

Shanghai Allied Cement Co., Ltd (continued)

Revenue

Net expenses

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to owners of
the Company

Profit attributable to
non-controlling interests

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income (expense)
attributable to owners of the Company

Other comprehensive income (expense)
attributable to non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income (expense) for
the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company

Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividend distribution to
non-controlling interests

Net cash inflow (outflow) from
operating activities

Net cash inflow (outflow) from
investing activities

Net cash outflow from
financing activities

Net cash inflow (outflow)

2013
THET
HK$’000

363,267

(335,226)

28,041

14,020

14,021

28,041

10,183

10,183

20,366

24,203

24,204

48,407

8,876

24,129

87,438

(13,314)

98,253

2012
TAT
HK$'000

372,395

(3583,843)

18,652

9,275

9,277

18,5652

(412)

(412)

(824)

8,863

8,865

17,728

13,681

9,213)

(28,055)

(40,174)

(77,442)
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Financial Summary

BE+-A=1T—HLUBEE

Financial year ended 31st December,

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
FAT FAT FAT FAT FiEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E¥ Results
WA Revenue 490,116 451,444 725,298 704,698
BRA AT R A Profit before taxation 9,487 515,491 117,810 46,516
IR Taxation 535 (140,976) (29,321) (9,384)
REE T Profit for the year 10,022 374,515 88,489 37,132
REFRR Profit for the year
JE(R 7 attributable to:
/NG Owners of the Company 6,709 168,332 76,158 26,834
R Non-controlling interests 3,313 206,183 12,331 10,298
10,022 374,515 88,489 37,132
BREREF Basic earnings per share 1.90 47.73 21.31 411
Bl HK cents  7{ll HK cents  7&{ll HK cents  7&{lll HK cents
R+=B=+—H
At 31st December,
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
TAT TAT TAT TAT FiEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEREE Assets and liabilities
BERTE Total assets 1,348,592 1,426,535 1,587,749 1,611,846
BERE Total liabilities 1,037,806 779,684 593,730 450,782
FEE R iR Non-controlling interests 187,229 396,808 423,262 419,431
RABRRER Equity attributable to
[E(h e owners of the Company 123,557 250,043 570,757 741,633
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